STATE OF MICHIGAN DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING

PAGE 1 TO 51

Taken at 1300 Beaubien, Room 328A, Police Headquarters, Detroit, Michigan, 48226, Commencing at 3:14 p.m., Thursday, August 30th, 2012, Before Elizabeth Koller, CSR-7042.



Page 2

1	APPEARANCES:
2	CELIA BANKS WASHINGTON (P54338)
3	Attorney to the Board
4	Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
5	1300 Beaubien, Room 328
6	Detroit, Michigan 48226
7	(313) 596-1835
8	Appearing on behalf of the Board of Police
9	Commissioners.
10	
11	COMMISSIONERS:
12	JEROME WARFIELD, CHAIRMAN
13	DONNELL WHITE, REGULAR MEMBER
14	JESSICA TAYLOR, VICE CHAIRPERSON
15	
16	ALSO PRESENT:
17	GEORGE ANTHONY, SECRETARY
18	RALPH GODBEE, CHIEF OF POLICE
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	

25



1 Detroit, Michigan

2 August 30, 2012

3 About 3:14 p.m.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Good afternoon, ladies 5 and gentlemen, and welcome to the Board of Police 6 Commissioners Meeting. My name is Jerome Warfield, 7 Chairman of the Board of Police Commissioners. Serving 8 with me today is Commissioner Donnell White, and also 9 Chief Ralph Godbee, good to have you, sir.

10 CHIEF GODBEE: Good to be here, sir.
11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'm going to ask if our
12 Board Secretary Mr. George Anthony will introduce our
13 staff that's present.

MR. SECRETARY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For the record, George Anthony, Secretary to the Board. We have present Ms. Pamela Davis Drake, I think I got it right, who is our Chief Investigator. I apologize. Ms. Celia Banks Washington, the Attorney to the Board.

We also have Sergeant Alan Quinn who is recording our proceedings and Ms. Elizabeth Koller from Hanson Court Reporting Service. Also we have Ms. Dalph Watson who is our Director of Police Personnel.

And if I may I would like to ask our Chief
Investigator if she can introduce her staff who's here?
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Please state your name



1	for the record, please?
2	MS. DAVIS DRAKE: Sure, Pamela Davis Drake,
3	Chief Investigator. And with us we have Sergeant
4	Miles, we have Sergeant Murphy, we have Daniel
5	Thompson, Investigator, Investigator Marquitta
6	Nacomico, and we have Investigator Kenneth Parskaven,
7	Investigator Sloan is also with us.
8	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, ma'am. Is
9	that everyone?
10	SECRETARY ANTHONY: That is.
11	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Is Reverend Penson here?
12	Would you come, sir, thank you. Good to see you.
13	Could you come and meet us in our invocation for
14	today's meeting, please?
15	REVEREND PENSON: May we all bow our heads in
16	a word of prayer. Dear Gracious, Kind, Wonderful,
17	Heavenly Father, we bless you, we thank you, we magnify
18	your name. Now we ask your blessings upon this Police
19	Commissioner Meeting.
20	We ask your blessing on the Commissioners as
21	well as Police personnel. We ask God that this meeting
22	be utilized to enhance our Department and make our City
23	a much better brighter place. We bless your holy name.
24	In Jesus name, Amen.
25	AUDIENCE: Amen.



1	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: We are expecting quorum
2	in today's meeting so when another Commissioner comes
3	we will then move to our voting items and move through
4	the agenda of the items that we need to vote on.
5	I want to say thank you to all of our new
6	Commissioners who are here I'm sorry, Investigators,
7	thank you, sir, our new Investigators who are here.
8	Good to have you here in the room where the people are.
9	Good to see again our Chief Investigator and
10	she will give a report in a minute as relates to the
11	progress that's being made at that particular office of
12	ours.
13	Is there a Secretary's Report?
14	SECRETARY ANTHONY: Yes, sir, there is a
15	Secretary's Report. Secretary's Report dated
16	August 30th, 2012 and this is for citizen complaints
17	received July 2012. The monthly count of complaints
18	for 2012 in July was 117 compared to July of 2011 which
19	was 132. This represents an 11 percent decrease.
20	The year to day numbers are in 2012, 791
21	compared to 2011, 894, which represents a 12 percent
22	decrease. At the end of July 2012 the Office of the
23	Chief Investigator had open investigations 265, cases
24	filed 791, cases closed 1,226.
25	Of the 117 cases filed 33 percent involved



i uge o
unknown officers, the alleged known units involve
leading in complaints filed in July 2012 were
Communications at 14 percent, Northeastern District at
12 percent, and the Sixth Precinct at 10 percent.
The 117 cases filed in July of 2011 involved
193 allegations where the leading areas of concern were
demeanor 33 percent, procedure 24 percent, service
16 percent, and force at 10 percent.
And that concludes the reading of the
Secretary's Report, sir.
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Any questions regarding
the Secretary's Report?
COMMISSIONER WHITE: No.
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: For point of clarity
under one heading it says cases filed 791 and under
that it says of 117 cases filed.
SECRETARY ANTHONY: In July.
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: 791 is that year to date?
SECRETARY ANTHONY: 791 is year to day 2012.
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Great. Okay. Thank you,
sir, for that report.
SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: For the record,
Commissioner Jessica Taylor, Vice Chair of the Board of
Police Commissioners as joined us. Good to have you,



1 ma'am. 2 At this time we'll go ahead and move and approved our agenda and past minutes. At this time I 3 4 will entertain a motion to approve the agenda for today 5 August 30, 2012. COMMISSIONER WHITE: 6 So move. COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second. 7 8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Hearing and seeing no 9 objections, all those in favor? 10 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed? Motion carries. I also will entertain a motion for the 12 13 approval of the minutes dated Thursday, August 2nd, 2012. 14 15 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: So moved. 16 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support. 17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Hearing and seeing no 18 objections, all those in favor? 19 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 20 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed? Motion carries. I will entertain a motion to approve 21 the minutes from Thursday, August 9th 2012. 22 23 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: So move. 24 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support. 25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Hearing or seeing no



1	objections, all those in favor?
2	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
3	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
4	Motion carries. Now for the minutes of August 16th,
5	and August 23rd there was no quorum present and so
6	there were no official meeting minutes but I think the
7	transactions of those meetings should still go down as
8	relates to our archives. So understanding that we'll
9	entertain a motion for the approval of the minutes
10	coming from the meeting of August 16th and the meeting
11	of August 23rd, 2012.
12	COMMISSIONER WHITE: So moved.
13	COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.
14	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
15	and supported. Hearing and seeing no objections, all
16	those in favor?
17	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
18	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
19	Motion carries. At this time I'm going to ask if our
20	Chief Investigator will come to the podium for our
21	monthly OCI report at this time, Chief Investigator
22	Pamela Davis Drake.
23	MS. DAVIS DRAKE: For the record, Pamela
24	Davis Drake, Chief Investigator. I am going to recap
25	what Mr. Anthony has already provided to us



Page 9

1 statistically with the exception of for the purpose of comparison the total number of cases again identified 2 3 January 1st through 2012 through July 31st 2012, 4 791 cases. The total cases closed during that same period 1,226 cases. And, therefore, the closed to open 5 6 ratio is 55 percent which in essence means that we're closing cases faster than we're receiving them, and 7 8 that has been the case for the past year.

9 We received an average between January 1st 10 and July 31st, 110 cases per month with an average of 11 six new cases monthly per Investigator. Those averages 12 have also been pretty consistent since January. For 13 the month of August our statistics are as follows: We 14 have a total of 223 open cases, 16 cases were submitted 15 closing which means we have zero cases over 90 days.

I believe that merits -- there we go.

16

17

(Applause.)

MS. DAVIS DRAKE: That's what I was looking for. Thank you. As you know these numbers reflect the hard work of the OCI staff and specifically under the leadership of Ms. Washington and Lieutenant Leach for all their hard work in reducing the back load and eliminating that backlog has paid off.

We also have focused on teamwork. The supervisors and the investigators have worked very



Page 10

diligently about working with each other, helping each other, and assisting to make sure that that backlog stays consistent.

4 Now, the one thing that we also are doing, we're doing, well, several things, but Ms. Washington 5 6 and I are continuing to hold those Thursday weekly accountability meetings with the teams. It's a tool 7 8 that she put in place actually last year and it is 9 working. We don't want to, of course, if it's not broke we don't want to fix it. We're emphasizing again 10 sustainability and maintaining that zero figure. 11

12 We're continuing the procedures that were put 13 in place through the prior leadership, and additionally 14 we're instituting some new things. The Thursday Accountability Meeting, again, we're going to continue 15 16 that. But the weekly team meetings with just the 17 supervisors and teams were also instituted and to 18 update you that is a collective meeting with staff and 19 with the supervisors to emphasis the issues that need 20 to be addressed, matters of concern and interest, policy and procedures, and so forth. 21

Also we've reduced the initial deadline from the submission date of 90 days to 80 days and what we realized is that if we are waiting until the 90th day we do not have the time to review and if there are any



Page 11

1 corrections to reports that have to be made we don't 2 have enough time to get that done. So by reducing it 3 to 80 days what we're actually doing is giving them 4 10 days leeway time so that we can still make that 5 90 day deadline.

6 The Weekly Supervisors Meetings we've 7 instituted with the Chief and that is to review 8 statistics, to disseminate and encourage supervisors 9 and to get information out as soon as possible. We've 10 also instituted some regular training opportunities for 11 staff, Lunch and Learn specifically, CMS, Data 911 12 Systems Training.

We've already held one round of training and that was with Data Tech this past Tuesday the 28th, it covered the CMS System, and we have upcoming trainings that include building footage and also Data 911. The reason for that is because we want to eventually become self-sufficient.

We want to be able to upload our own information, upload our own video footage and to copy that so it can save time and that will assist us greatly. In October we're going to be conducting a case management training and this is a followup training actually of the training that was conducted last year, very comprehensive training conducted by



1 Mr. Anthony. 2 In November, we're going to hold a strategic planning session that's with Supervisors, 3 4 Ms. Washington, Lieutenant Leach and I and we're going 5 to sit down and talk about the strategy going forward, 6 come up with a strategic plan for 2013 and we're going to keep ourselves focused and directed by having very 7 8 clear cut goals and objectives for us to work from. Finally, in December we're going to hold a 9 10 training on motivational interviewing for law enforcement, and that motivational interviewing is a 11 12 technique that is largely used in the therapeutic 13 world. It's for redirecting and keeping people focused 14 when we're conducting interviews. So that is the end 15 of my report. Thank you. 16 Thank you. CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: 17 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: Any questions? 18 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: I don't have any questions, but I would like to thank you for your hard 19 20 work. 21 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: You know, I cannot take 22 credit, but thank you so much. These guys have worked 23 their tails off literally and they have done a 24 fantastic job. The staff has been wonderful and the 25 leadership has been wonderful.

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1	COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you, Commissioner,
2	and I, too, echo the sentiments of my colleagues to all
3	of the Investigators that are here. Thank you for your
4	continued hard work in arriving at the place of zero.
5	Zero is only as good as we're able to stay
6	there and maintain that. So I hope that the same
7	energy remains as we move forward and stay in
8	compliance with that Consent Decree Mandate.
9	The question I had speaks directly to a
10	number of concerns in terms of the amount of time we
11	were allowing Investigators the opportunity to write
12	their cases and we talked about some potential
13	exploring of software or different other opportunities.
14	Have you looked any further into that or is
15	there anything that we're currently implementing that
16	provides that kind of space for our Investigators to
17	keep up with their writing?
18	MS. DAVIS DRAKE: At this time we had not
19	looked any further into that, but what we're doing is
20	we're putting some other things into place that will
21	help and assist the Investigators at the front end, and
22	that's timeframes and using more efficient use of their
23	teams, getting things in, getting the interviews with
24	witnesses and so forth earlier.
25	The idea is to initially as soon as you get



Page 14

1 that case start working that case. And in that 2 instance it's a lot easier on the back end because you 3 already have the information that you need up front. Does that answer your question, Commissioner? 4 5 COMMISSIONER WHITE: It does. 6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Certainly also, Chief Investigator, we want to certainly take our hats off to 7 8 the Chief. I think what you see here today and what 9 the public sees here today is a dynamic synergy between 10 the Board and between the Chief's Office as relates to our seriousness to come out of the Consent Decree. 11 12 And so for those citizens who are sitting 13 here and you other folk questioning are we serious 14 about what have we done about it? I think you're 15 seeing very tangibly how serious we are to come up from 16 under the Consent Decree in order that these new 17 policies and procedures are now mainstreamed throughout 18 our Department. 19 This could not be done at OCI without the Chief's support without him putting Officers over there 20 21 to help us maintain and balance this load. So we 22 certainly thank the Department for just their 23 outstanding leadership, as well.

And I echo the words of my colleagues. We certainly have to keep the pedal to the metal. We



Page 15

1 certainly congratulate those who've done a good job and 2 we look forward to moving this process forward. And thank you for all of your help and support. 3 4 Now, before you sit down, Attorney Washington, you correct me, I know there were some 5 6 policy directives coming from the Office of the Chief Investigator that you wanted the Board to consider. 7 8 Do you want to give those to us now or later? 9 How do you want to do that? 10 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Just very quickly, 11 Celia Washington. We have emailed just a preliminary. 12 I'm working through Secretary Anthony on the formal 13 presentation for the Board for your consideration and 14 adoption. 15 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I know I received the 16 I don't know if my colleagues have. Did you email. 17 send it to the colleagues, as well? 18 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Yes. CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'm asking that we have a 19 20 30 day review period and then we'll come back together with any questions if it's okay with my colleagues with 21 22 any questions or comments or concerns about those 23 directives and then we can initiate that, and that will 24 be our new policy moving forward.

Understanding, having said that, though, I do



25

8/30	/20)12
------	-----	-----

1 want to understand that these policies are already being tested out right now in an effort that we 2 maintain the level of commitment that we promised to 3 4 the citizens. 5 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: I appreciate you saying 6 To the new Chief's compliment, she came in the that. door and had some questions about some very serious 7 8 issues with regard to performance and maintaining. 9 Again, we've said it already, sustainability is key 10 here. So, yes, we have on a preliminary basis used 11 some of the forms that you will see, some of the policy 12 that she's developed and then with your approval we'll 13 go move with the presentation. 14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you. Anymore questions from my colleagues? Chief, any questions? 15 16 CHIEF GODBEE: No, sir. 17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: We appreciate that. At 18 this time we'll move onto the Chief of Police 19 Department for his report? 20 CHIEF GODBEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We don't have a formal report today. But when we do have 21 22 an opportunity I just want to applaud just the 23 commitment of the Officers to the Department through 24 extremely difficult times, legal challenges. 25 Prevailing or not, the Officers have come to



1 work, and I think it's very laudable for them to rise 2 above their personal circumstances to still contribute 3 significantly towards us making gains in reducing crime 4 in the City.

5 With that being said, I think there was a 6 court hearing today where the City did prevail relative 7 to the temporary restraining order. And the City's 8 employment terms will be in place. But I do want to 9 say parenthetically nobody wins in this scenario.

10 It's unfortunate that we are at a point where 11 the terms had to be imposed. But consistent with the 12 Consent Agreement that we entered into voluntarily, we 13 have to follow the edicts mandated of that.

14 So from our Officers sake I would like to say 15 for the record it's regrettable that we're in this 16 situation. But since we are our aim as a leadership 17 team in consultation with the Board is to make sure 18 that we provide police service. How we got to that 19 point we don't necessarily control, but since we're at 20 this point we still have a service to provide.

21 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, sir. Any 22 questions for the Chief? Thank you, sir. I want to 23 move back briefly to OCI. There's some potential 24 classification changes. Do we want to do those now or 25 later? We'll do that next week. Okay. Thank you.



We have several grants and resolutions that we want to vote on. At this time I'm going to ask if Commissioner White will read the Grant Request Permission to Accept a Monetary Donation from Fifth/Third Bank?

6 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Commissioners, before us is request for permission to accept a monetary donation 7 8 from Fifth/Third Bank. On August 13, 2012, the 9 Fifth/Third Bank addressed a letter to the Detroit 10 Police Department indicating that that would like to 11 donate funds to the Department to support the DPD 12 Family and Community Day or programs and services that 13 serve a majority of family and persons that are low to 14 moderate income. Check Number 00042563 in the amount of \$100.00 dated August 7, 2012, accompanied the 15 16 letter.

17 There's no cost to the Department for this 18 donation. If these donated funds are accepted 19 Inspector Donald Johnson of Homeland Security will 20 serve as the Project Director. I move for adoption. 21 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support. 2.2 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly read 23 and supported the \$100.00 donation coming from 24 Fifth/Third Bank be accepted and received. Any questions or discussions? Any questions or 25



1 discussions? Hearing or seeing none, all those in 2 favor?

3 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
5 Motion caries. At this time I'm going to ask if Vice
6 Chairperson Jessica Taylor will read the second
7 request.

8 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second request is a 9 request for permission to accept the Detroit 10 Community-Based Violence Prevention Grant from the Office of Juvenile Prevention. The United States 11 12 Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, 13 Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, 14 OJJD has awarded the Detroit Police Department a 15 Detroit Community-Based Violence Prevention Grant in 16 the amount \$1,500,000.00 with no cash match.

17 The project period will run from 10-01-2012 18 through 9-30-2015. The Federal Grant Award Number is 19 2012-PB-FX2-K002 and the City Appropriation 20 Number 13568. The mission of the program is to change 21 community norms regarding violence to provide 22 alternatives to violence when gangs and individuals in 23 the community are making risky behavior decisions and 24 to increase awareness of the perceived risk and cost of 25 involvement in violence among high risk young people.



8/30/	201	2
-------	-----	---

1 If approval is granted to accept this funding Inspector Eric Jones of the Office of the Assistant 2 3 Chief will serve as the Project Director. And I move 4 that we accept this grant. 5 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support. 6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved and supported that we allow the Department to accept 7 8 approval of this grant. Any comments, questions? 9 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Through the Chair, to 10 the Chief, is this for education? Is this marketing? 11 CHIEF GODBEE: Through the Chair, sir. This 12 is for a project called Cease Fire. Cease Fire, the 13 methodology we chose to follow was a submission based 14 on the Boston model. The methodology identifies some 15 of the worse offenders. They're targeted for specific 16 interventions. Somewhat of a carrot and stick 17 approach. The carrot being appropriate services, job 18 training, things of that nature, any type of assistance to keep individuals from being recidivist or violating 19 20 probation or parole. 21 The stick is a strong law enforcement 22 component in conjunction with prosecutors to make sure 23 there's swift action towards those targeted 24 individuals, and also some level of force applied

25 towards associates in drug and gang activity.



1	It's been proven very successful in Boston.
2	They've had sustained results relative to reduction of
3	youth violence as a result of this methodology. So we
4	got funding for three years based on our submission.
5	COMMISSIONER WHITE: This hinges on the gang
6	related
7	CHIEF GODBEE: It's tied to the Mayor's Youth
8	Violence Prevention Initiative which birthed the
9	application, so we were successful in the submission.
10	But the majority of the grant goes toward
11	implementation. We did have seed funding that would
12	initially bring John J. College and Professor David
13	Kennedy in, but we would of had to find funds to
14	sustain it beyond the initial implementation. So the
15	grant will help us sustain it for three years.
16	COMMISSIONER WHITE: Okay. Thank you,
17	Mr. Chair.
18	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Commissioner
19	White, thank you, Chief. Any other questions
20	concerning this particular grant? Hearing and seeing
21	none, all those in favor?
22	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
23	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
24	Motion carries. At this time we have a resolution
25	honoring the commitment and the service of retired



Page 22

1	Deputy Chief Janice Butler. I'm going to ask if
2	Commissioner Taylor will read that for us.
3	COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: The Resolution honoring
4	retirement of Deputy Janice Butler. Whereas, Janice
5	Butler was appointed to the Detroit Police Department
6	on April 6th, 1987. After graduating from the Detroit
7	Metropolitan Police Academy, Officer Butler was
8	assigned to the 1st Precinct and later to the Narcotics
9	section as well as Special Patrol Operations.
10	Additional assignments for Officer Butler
11	included the 11th Precinct, Detroit Police Athletic
12	League and the Mayor's Security Unit for the late Mayor
13	Coleman Alexander Young. And whereas, Officer Butler
14	was promoted to the rank of Sergeant on August 3rd,
15	1995 and was assigned to the Crime Prevention Section
16	and the Public Information Section.
17	During this time she also served as a staff
18	member to the Office of the Chief of Police. And
19	whereas, Sergeant Butler continually displayed her
20	commitment to excellence in the performance in her
21	administrative and supervisory assignments. She was
22	promoted to the rank of Lieutenant on December 22nd,
23	1999, whereupon she was assigned to the Office of Chief
24	of Police.

Her other assignments included the Planning



25

and Inspection Section and Public Information Section.
 Clearly Lieutenant Butler was being groomed for more
 responsibility and a greater leadership role in the
 Department.

5 And whereas, Lieutenant Butler was appointed 6 to the rank of Inspector July 18th, 2002, and became 7 the Commanding Officer of Executive Development Success 8 Planning, the Civil Rights Integrity Bureau's Audit 9 Team, and later as Chief of Staff to the Chief of 10 Police.

In November 2004 Inspector Butler was appointed the rank of Commander where she continued as Chief of Staff to the Chief of Police which was briefly interrupted by her assignment as Commanding Officer of the Metropolitan Division.

As whereas, Commander Butler was appointed to the rank of Deputy Chief on September 23rd, 2010, and assumed command of the Civil Rights Integrity Bureau and later the Management Service Bureau until her retirement on July 14, 2012.

And whereas, Deputy Chief Butler has dutifully served the citizens of Detroit for more than 25 years. She was the deserving recipient of the two Chief's Unit Award, three Chief's Citation in Medal, nine Perfect Attendance Awards, two Accident Free



Page 24

1 Driving Awards, and numbers of letter of appreciation and commendations from citizens and businesses. 2 3 Whereas, Deputy Chief Butler has demonstrated 4 unwavering commitment to the citizens of the City of 5 Detroit throughout her entire career with the Detroit 6 Police Department. She is loved and highly respected throughout the Law Enforcement community. 7 8 Now therefore be it resolved, that the

9 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners speaking on 10 behalf of the citizens of the City of Detroit and the 11 Detroit Police Department recognize and honor the 12 longevity, professionalism, and contributions of Deputy 13 Chief Janice Butler.

Her tenacious spirit and dedication to improving the quality of life for the citizens of Detroit and it's neighboring communities merit our highest regards. We thank you and congratulate you, Deputy Chief Janice Butler.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Let's give her a hand. I
20 know she's not here.

(Applause.)
CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I want to give her a hand
for her services. At this time I will accept a motion
from my colleagues to accept this resolution and allow
it to remain a permanent part of our archives.



1 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: So move. 2 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support. 3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved 4 and supported. Again, we just wanted to say to Deputy 5 Chief Butler, in her absence, just outstanding job, 6 outstanding career. I had a chance to meet her and work with her and she's just a wonderful woman to work 7 8 She's just a pleasure. Always the consummate with. 9 professional and always wanting to do the things to 10 make the Department look better. 11 And so we thank God. You know, we talk about 12 Officers when they do wrong, but I don't think we do 13 enough to lift them up when they do the right thing. 14 And more of them do the right thing, than the wrong 15 thing. And so we thank God that we can retire someone who's had an outstanding career and not being at a 16 church or at a funeral. 17 18 I look forward to these moments when we can 19 retire people still in goods health and their good 20 strength. Having said that, anymore comments? All 21 those in favor of approving the resolution? 22 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 23 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed? 24 Motion carries. Before we move to Old Business and all 25 that was under New Business I want to ask if Attorney



Page 26

1 Washington could come. We had an appeal hearing, an appeal of a citizens complaint regarding CCR 2 3 Number 48997, a complaint of Ms. Mason. I want to ask 4 if Attorney Washington can move us through this part. 5 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Thank you, Mr. Chair, 6 Celia Washington on behalf of the Board. As Ms. Mason and Sergeant Miles make their way forward I'd just like 7 8 to give a little bit of a preface for the record as to why we're doing this. This is the Appeals Citizens 9 10 Complaint CCR Number 48997, BPC Number 12-259, 11 Complainant Jaquila Mason. 12 Today's hearing is called pursuant to 13 Section 7-809 of the Detroit City Charter, Resolution 14 of Complaints. The Charter provides that if a 15 complaint is not resolved to the satisfaction of the 16 complainant, we understand that that happens more often 17 necessarily than not, but this hearing is 18 discretionary, if the Board so deems fit this type of hearing is held. 19 20 It will be Mr. Chair's pleasure as to the 21 time parameters allowed for both sides. After the 22 hearing the complainant will present first, the 23 Sergeant who handled, the Investigator who handled the 24 investigation will make her presentation as to the

25 bases for her findings.

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1 There won't be any further exchange, if it's okay with the Chair. After the hearing or after 2 hearing both sides then the Board will take the matter 3 4 under advisement and the opinion will be rendered in 5 public within 30 days. 6 I also make mention because some may wonder why isn't this a closed session? And it is not a 7 8 closed session because this type of thing doesn't fall 9 within the exception of the Open Meetings Act. Not 10 withstanding the fact that the Charter requires that 11 this type of hearing be held is certainly not one 12 appropriate for closed session. 13 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Just so that we're clear, 14 Attorney Washington, so we'll hear from the Sergeant first or the citizen first? 15 16 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: The complainant, the citizen first. 17 18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And then we'll hear from the Sergeant? 19 20 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Yes, sir. 21 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And there will be no back 22 and forth. I'm going to set a time limit if it's okay 23 with my colleagues for five minute apiece, five minutes 24 from each side, and then we'll move on. I'm going to 25 ask, I don't see Mr. Brown here, but I'm going to ask



Page 28

1	if Secretary Anthony will keep the time and once he has
2	indicated that you're approaching your five minutes you
3	can end your comments, that would be very helpful.
4	ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
5	And I also for the record would like to indicate that
6	copies of Ms. Mason entire file has been presented to
7	each Commissioner in advance of today.
8	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you.
9	ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Thank you.
10	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Ms. Mason, welcome to the
11	Board of Police Commissioners Meeting. For the record,
12	could you please state your name?
13	MS. MASON: Jaquela Mason.
14	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And could you spell it
15	for the record, please?
16	MS. MASON: J-A-Q-U-E-L-A, Mason, M-A-S-O-N.
17	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, ma'am. You
18	have five minutes.
19	MS. MASON: Hello to everyone. I'm here.
20	I've been a citizen of Detroit for 32 years. Out of my
21	32 years I had to depend on the law for certain things
22	in my life where I've had to call the police but never
23	have I felt violated by a Officer where I'm in my house
24	half dressed bringing my groceries in.
25	I never hear a knock. I never hear an

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 1313-567-8100

Page 29

announcement that this is the police. And you can walk in, search my house, tear up my back door, and lay me on the floor at the time I was pregnant and you cannot give me a reason of why you came into my house besides you seen a white person, excuse me, cutting through my yard.

7 I've not stayed at my home since April 9th.
8 I do not feel safe in my home. My children do not want
9 to go home. I'm kind of tired of living on my
10 grandmother now because that's where I've been staying
11 since then. And I just felt like this needed to be
12 addressed.

I know when the law -- because I'm actually in school my second year for law. But when you're becoming an Officer you have to also uphold the law and do the things the appropriate way. You can't just barge into someone's home. The Officer was not chasing no one. You were not chasing a fleeing felon.

I have never had in the two years that I've been at this home, I've never had an altercation with these Police Officers. Don't know them. He never announced he was the Police. You weren't in uniform clothing. And it kind of startled me.

24 It bothered me and it's been bothering me 25 since April where I'm actually going to just pack up



1 move out of the Detroit area no sooner than January 2 because I can't do it anymore. I called several civil 3 rights. I've called the governor's office.

I've also left a message for Chief Godbee's
Office. I've talked to the Mayor's Office and I talked
to Sergeant Miles. I've talked to the Board of
Commission, Ms. Washington. And to me it seems like
this needs to be addressed so it won't happen to no one
else.

Because I know as my Fourth Amendment Right they shouldn't have been violated, that's the way I feel. I feel like I was violated where I'm losing my trust, but I'm trying not to lose my faith and my trust in the Detroit Police Department because of one or two Officers' mistakes.

Because like you said before all Officers, no one's perfect but at same time you can't keep doing this. And this incident did occur again to a 83-year-old lady on my street because of the area where we live in. I guess it's known as a drug neighborhood. I've only been over there for two years.

But just because the neighborhood is a drug infested neighborhood that don't give you right to just go up to someone's home because you're hearing accusation of drugs being sold. I didn't understand it



1	so I came to the Board for some closure on it.
2	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, ma'am.
3	MS. MASON: Thank you.
4	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Sergeant Miles.
5	SERGEANT MILES: Good afternoon, Board.
6	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Good afternoon.
7	SERGEANT MILES: Elaine Miles, for the
8	record. I was assigned this investigation and I
9	addressed areas of concern which were entry search, and
10	two demeanor charges. For the entry, my findings was
11	exonerated. And I interviewed several people including
12	a witness that did not want to be identified on record.
13	What I found during my investigation was that
14	the Officers stated they came to the home. They've
15	gotten several complaints in regards to narcotics being
16	sold. They actually observed two people go into the
17	back of the home. One of the Officers went to the back
18	and knocked on the door, stated this is DP.
19	The guy said, Mr. Gilbert, the witness, I
20	mean, the complainants fiancé, said what do you need?
21	He opened the door. The Officers at that point stepped
22	in. He had the narcotics in his hands. They
23	confiscated the narcotics and they arrested him.
24	I spoke to a witness like I said that didn't
25	want to be identified that actually told me that he did



Page 32

not witness that particular incident but he addressed the sell of the narcotics in the home, the fact that they go to the back door and he's observed on many occasions that narcotic transactions has happened at the location.

Based on the statements that I received from the complainant and from Mr. Gilbert, which is her fiancé, the statements were there were major inconsistencies in her statements. And I found that the Officers based on the way they gained entry to the home had probable cause to be in the house, that was my findings for the entry.

I also addressed the search. She stated that her home was searched without justification. Based on my findings the Officers actually did not search the home, but actually found the narcotics on his possession. Once, again, Mr. Gilbert in his statement admitted that he had macrotics in his possession.

19 Their statements, Mr. Gilbert and Ms. Mason's 20 statements, were inconsistent. I found no facts to 21 support that the incident the complainant allegedly 22 occurred, that the home was actually searched.

For the demeanor charge, the complainant, Ms. Mason, stated that the Officer cursed at her stating get your ass on the floor and where did the



Page 33

1 white people go? I've not sustained that investigation, I mean, that complaint because I did not 2 have any evidence. There was no video available to 3 4 determine whether or not there was any demeanor or 5 profanities use during this incident, so I've not 6 sustained that because there was no proof one way or 7 the other that I could prove that that actually 8 occurred.

9 And for the other charge it was in regards to 10 a phone call that she made to Northeastern District 11 talking to another Sergeant that she stated was rude to 12 her. I've also not sustained that because I could not 13 obtain any of the phone records and I did not have 14 enough proof to determine whether or not that incident 15 actually occurred.

16 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Board, are there any 17 questions for either the citizen, Ms. Mason, or 18 Sergeant Miles?

19 COMMISSIONER WHITE: I do have one. Sergeant 20 Miles, just for the record, the incident that you 21 described where Officers approached the gentleman and 22 attempted to purchase narcotics is the exact same day 23 an instance of which the complainant just articulated 24 where Officers allegedly barged in and placed her on 25 the floor and searched the home?



1		SERGEANT MILES: Yes, this was on April 9th,
2	2012, the	exactly same incident and he was arrested.
3		COMMISSIONER WHITE: Okay.
4		

4 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: I would like to ask, 5 she said the Officers entered her home without 6 justification. Can you just give us explanation of 7 justification?

8 SERGEANT MILES: Well, I guess in terms of 9 you would either enter the home a couple different 10 ways. You would have a search warrant, you would get 11 permission from the actual homeowner or you would have 12 to have probable cause on extenuating circumstances to 13 enter a home.

14 According to the Officers they knocked on the 15 door. Ms. Mason's fiancé actually -- they knocked on 16 the door and said this is Dee. He said, what do you 17 need? I need two. He actually opened the door and he 18 had the narcotics in his hand. So at that point they 19 sent them to the location and apprehended him with the 20 narcotics which gave them probable cause. They 21 actually saw it in his hand.

22 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, thank you,
both. We will rendered our decision. It will be a
written decision. We'll rendered it within 30 days



1 you'll have our decision, both parties. Thank you so 2 very much.

3 There are some unfinished agenda items in Old 4 Business that we want complete and move forward at this 5 particular time.

6 Probably about three weeks ago now we read 7 into the record a resolution for Matrix Human Services 8 for the outstanding work that they're doing on the 9 eastside of the City of Detroit.

I'm just going to ask if we could vote that resolution in and approve it that we may add it to our again permanent records here at the Commission and also deliver this at their next Board Meeting or do you all wish that we read that into the record again? What is your pleasures? Read the resolution. All right.

16 Could you do that for me, please?

25

17 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Commissioners, before us 18 is a resolution honoring Matrix Human Services. Now therefore be it resolved, that the Board of Police 19 20 Commissioners speaking on behalf of the citizens of the 21 City of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department 22 acknowledge and applaud Matrix Human Services for 23 performing this important and valuable work in our 24 community.

Through its efforts Matrix moves individuals



	I dge 50
1	and families from dependence to independence and help
2	eradicate poverty in the mind, body, and spirit. We
3	thank and congratulate Matrix Human Services, signed
4	the Board of Police Commissioners, August 9, 2012.
5	Mr. Chair, I move for adoption.
6	COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.
7	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
8	for adoption and support. Any discussion regarding the
9	resolution? Hearing and seeing none, all those in
10	favor?
11	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
12	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
13	Motion carried. There's also a policy directive that
14	we need to act on that's Policy Directive
15	Number 201.11, which is regarding the use of force and
16	detainee injury reporting/investigation. I don't see
17	Lieutenant Bliss here.
18	Chief, is there anyone that can just briefly
19	speak? It's come before us a couple times.
20	CHIEF GODBEE: Deputy Chief Tolbert may be
21	able to speak to it.
22	SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, just for the
23	record, Lieutenant Bliss did advise the Board that it
24	had been published for 30 days, there had been no
25	comment and that was placed on the record.



	rage 37
1	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you. If you can
2	just update us real quick.
3	D.C. TOLBERT: Deputy Chief Tolbert. As
4	Attorney Anthony just accurately stated the policy was
5	published for 30 days and as Lieutenant Bliss said it
6	was brought to the Board and we're waiting on action
7	from the Board.
8	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Is there any questions or
9	comments about this directive?
10	COMMISSIONER WHITE: None.
11	COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: I don't have any.
12	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those in favor of
13	adopting the new directive, aye.
14	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
15	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed? The
16	directive's adopted. Thank you, sir. We have a couple
17	more grants that we want to work our way through.
18	Permission to accept a Detroit Sak II Action Research
19	Project through the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office.
20	I'm going to ask if Commissioner Taylor if
21	you can read that for us, please I'm sorry,
22	Commissioner White.
23	COMMISSIONER WHITE: Commissioners, before us
24	is request to accept a Detroit Sak II Action Research
25	Project Grant through the Wayne County Prosecutor's

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO A13-567-8100

Page 38

Office. The Detroit Police Department has been
 selected to receive \$111,917.00.00 in grant funding
 with no required match from the Detroit Sak II Action
 Research Project through the Wayne County Prosecutor's
 Office.

It covers the cost of one full time or two 6 part time sworn officers or investigators in an amount 7 8 not to exceed \$101,970.00 and supplies for \$9,920.00 9 for a total of \$111,917.00. The time period for the 10 grant is October 1st, 2011 through March 31st 2013. Commander Robert Ennis of the Criminal Investigations 11 12 Bureau will serve as the Project Director for the 13 The appropriation number for the grant is grant. 14 13565.

15 I move for adoption.

16 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.

17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved 18 and supported that the Department will seek approval 19 for the Detroit City Council for the Sak II Action 20 Research Grant. Any questions? I have one. Anybody 21 knows what Sak stands for?

22 CHIEF GODBEE: That's in reference to the 23 sexual assaults that were backlogged and we're going 24 through the process now of those that have been tested 25 through a project called Project 400 so we can



1 understand the scope of what we'll have to work with, so now the investigative followup to the testing of 2 3 those kits is taking place. 4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Okay. Thank you, sir. Any other questions? Hearing or seeing none. All 5 6 those if in favor of approving the request, aye? 7 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed? 8 9 Motion carries. I'm going to ask Commissioner Taylor, 10 if you can read the last one for us, please. 11 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Permission to accepted 12 a donated digital copier/printer for Northwestern 13 District from Ann Arbor Office Repair. On July 30th, 14 2012, Ann Arbor Office Repair addressed a letter to the 15 Detroit Police Department indicating that they would 16 like to donate a Panasonic 8045 digital copier/printer, serial number BGP50P00167 to the Northwestern District. 17 18 There's no cost to the Department for this 19 donation. I move that we support. 20 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support. CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved 21 22 and supported that we accept the donation of the 23 copier. Any questions? All those in favor? 24 COMMISSIONERS: Ave. 25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed.



Page 40

1 Motion granted. We are moving right along to announcements. Our next Board of Police Commissioners 2 Meeting will be held Thursday, September 6th, 2012 at 3 4 the 3:00 p.m., here at Police Headquarters. And 5 certainly we invite all of you to come out again. 6 At this portion of the meeting we move to the oral communications part of our agenda. If you wish to 7 8 address the Board of Police Commissioners, come to the 9 podium right here in the middle of the room and we ask 10 that you make would your comments within two minutes and Attorney Washington will keep the time on that for 11 12 us so that we may hear from as any as possible -- I'm 13 sorry, Attorney Anthony will keep the time. All right. 14 Good afternoon, ma'am. 15 MS. SMITH: Good afternoon to the 16 Commissioners. Bernice Smith, Political Activists. 17 Glad to see you, Chief. I'm glad that you're hear so 18 you can hear what I got to say today. 19 CHIEF GODBEE: Yes, ma'am. 20 MS. SMITH: I am very disappointed. You know 21 I'm a supporter of the Police Department. But 22 listening to different avenues about the Police

23 Department and what they're doing it's very aggravating 24 to me and I'm disappointed.

We heard the other day or the other night on



25

Page 41

1 TV and there was an incident where a lady was 2 highjacked. Most of you probably know about it. She 3 was highjacked. The car was towed in. But what's so 4 embarrassing was the fact that the newspaper and the TV 5 had to tell the public that the crook's wallet was on 6 the front seat.

Now, I cannot imagine when you tow a car in you're supposed to investigate the contents of the car and so forth. Who was lax in doing that position? Chief, I think you better check into that and see what happened in that. Because that makes it so embarrassing for the public to hear something like that on the TV.

I know we have so much that we have to correct as far as the Police Department is concerned but that was very very very upsetting to me. And then when she called in the report that she had the property the Officer told her to bring it in tomorrow.

Now, that is unnecessary for that to happen. Then when it was time to get her car she was not told that the car was where it was impounded at and then she was charged with a fee.

Now, I think once a car is being towed by the Police Department you're supposed to do your investigation and then later you're supposed to let the



Page 42

1 person who owns the car know where the car is and not a fee being charged to them. This was charged to this 2 lady. So I don't know --3 4 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Two minutes. 5 MS. SMITH: Brown is not here. Anyway the 6 Police Department has to come up forward as far as being more precise in their investigation. Now, I know 7 8 Officers are very upset about what happened today. 9 But, Chief, to make it sound a little better 10 and that you care and I know that you do care, the little speech that you made just now I think it would 11 12 be nice if you sent a memo to each one of the Precincts 13 and let them know how you feel about it. Because there 14 are people that are in dire need of their finance. 15 And I know it's not your fault that this 16 happened today at the courts. But it would mean 17 something to the Officers to let them know, hey, I do 18 care what happened today and what's going to happen in future in regards to their monies. 19 20 Because it's bad out here. And if this election comes down the way it's supposed to the way 21 22 they want it to come we're going to be in bad shape. 23 Now, you can believe it or not. 24 So I give you that advice and I'm going to 25 sit down, and thank you so much for listening to me.



1	SECRETARY ANTHONY: Two minutes.
2	MS. SMITH: I got two more minutes?
3	SECRETARY ANTHONY: No.
4	MS. SMITH: We'll, I'd like to congratulate
5	my young lady here of a job and her Chiefs of Staff and
6	people that's on her staff what a wonderful job you're
7	doing and we want you to continue to give us this
8	honest report because I believe that you're going to do
9	a hell of a good job and we congratulate you. You take
10	care. Thank you.
11	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you.
12	CHIEF GODBEE: Briefly, Ms. Smith, I don't
13	watch the news. That's how I keep my sanity. So I'm
14	not aware of that situation.
15	MS. SMITH: Really?
16	CHIEF GODBEE: No, not at all. However,
17	we'll have somebody check into it. But I don't watch
18	the news. Just to give a perspective, if what you
19	represent is true and accurate as reported, everything
20	that's reported is not accurate, number one, it's not
21	given in a proper context.
22	We respond to about 975,000 calls that come
23	through our 911 center every year which is about a half
24	a million calls for service that we're responding to.
25	So if that's the one they found wrong. I wish they



1 would report on the percentage of the ones we get right. So from that standpoint I'm not really moved by 2 3 what the media says on those types of issues. 4 MS. SMITH: No, it was her being interviewed, 5 the lady. 6 CHIEF GODBEE: Again, I'm not moved because the media has an agenda. When it comes to Detroit it's 7 8 not favorable to what we do. So that's just being 9 realistic in a lot of incidents. So with that slant I 10 can't do my job based on what Channel 2, 4 or 7 does. What we will do is follow up relative to her specific 11 12 complaint and if there was something done improper then 13 we'll follow up on that. 14 But that still does not account for the 15 number of times that Officers do things 100 percent by 16 the numbers and nobody reports on that. So I just say 17 that because I don't want you to be disappointed. 18 MS. SMITH: Not in you I'm not. 19 CHIEF GODBEE: Or the document. 20 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Chief. MR. WILDE: Billy Wilde. I have a friend 21 22 with me who's a local businessman. He's a first-time visitor and he has an issue. He has a parking lot out 23 24 here right across the Police Station. And apparently 25 when they block the street off they're impeding his

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

Page 45

1 business and was wondering if there's anything that the 2 Department could do to help him?

3 MR. MOHAMMED: Hi, good afternoon, everybody. 4 My name is Sharif Mohammed. I'm Metropolitan Parking 5 across the street from Police Headquarters. And my 6 only driveway is on Macomb Street only. I don't have a 7 driveway on Beaubien Street.

8 Unfortunately they closed the street. And I 9 don't mind if during working hours if they close the 10 street, no problem. They close 4:00 in the afternoon. So if they open the street especially on weekends I 11 12 don't mind because they're not working on weekends. 13 And I'm always cooperating with the Police Officers' 14 police cars. I never charge when the Police Officers 15 come for the medical section over here. Lieutenant 16 Mary knows about me.

17 I always give them free parking. So I just 18 need a little favor from you guys if you can because they killed my business three years ago when they built 19 20 a new garage, the first one. They're still closing the street by the driveway. Service drive to Macomb Street 21 22 they put barricades for three, four hours when big 23 events going on, nobody asking them. But now they're 24 closing the street.

So I just request if they can open the street



25

Page 46

1 after the hours but especially on weekends, I'd really 2 appreciate that. It can save my family. Thank you 3 very much.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Mohammed.5 Chief, is that our City Council?

6 CHIEF GODBEE: Mr. Mohammed, street closings 7 are not our call and so relative to the construction 8 permit and how that's constructed that's a City 9 Engineering type function. So we can help facilitate a 10 conversation with the people that made the decision, 11 but from that standpoint we don't influence the street 12 closures.

MR. MOHAMMED: I went to the managing, who's the manager. He said, I already told the police and, you know, so I took the permission from them. He said, I have to go to the City, I can go to the City. But, you know, he said I already took permission from Police.

19 It's not a police call. CHIEF GODBEE: We don't have a dog in that fight. What we do is enforce 20 what is there from a traffic safety standpoint. But as 21 22 far as dictating what streets are closed it's an 23 inconvenience for us also because that thoroughfare is 24 a main thoroughfare, for their staff and a lot of our 25 staff. So it's an inconvenience for all of us.



1	Not financially like you. But what we can
2	help do is some of our staff will see if we can get you
3	
	in touch with the appropriate people from the City and
4	get you the answers you need relative to how long that
5	closure's going to be effectuated.
6	MR. MOHAMMED: Okay. Let me ask them.
7	CHIEF GODBEE: Deputy Chief Tolbert, can you
8	make sure Mr. Mohammed gets with somebody on our staff
9	so we can facilitate a conversation.
10	MR. MOHAMMED: Thank you very much.
11	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Mr. Mohammed, in addition
12	to that we'll also send a letter of support to the
13	specific department that handles that on your behalf.
14	MR. MOHAMMED: Thank you very much.
15	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, sir.
16	CHIEF GODBEE: Also for the record,
17	Ms. Smith, I was saying tongue in cheek I don't watch
18	the news. I've got to watch it.
19	MS. SMITH: They put you on all the time.
20	CHIEF GODBEE: I know. My dad won't let me
21	forget.
22	MR. MOORE: To the Commissioners, our Chief,
23	Detroit's Finest, and the families that's here, my name
24	is Edward Moore. I am the liaison of the Honorable
25	Kwame Kenyatta of the Detroit City Councilman bring

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 1313-567-8100

Page 48

1 warm greeting from his office. From his office, first of all I want to thank the ICO staff of doing a 2 wonderful job, continue doing a good job. Councilman 3 4 Kenyatta is pleased to hear that kind of information. 5 Also we want to congratulate our Deputy Chief 6 Butler. So from the Office of Councilman Kenyatta, we're going to thank you. And this is very important. 7 8 I want to thank the Chief for coming through for 48217

9 Southwest Detroit, that a was 43-year-old man who we 10 love, love in Southwest Detroit. He was a block club 11 president.

12 And the Chief taking time to come out there 13 and made a presentation for this young man which is up 14 in age but we'll call him a young man. So we want to 15 thank you, Chief, and that the neighborhoods is still 16 buzzing about you coming out. And also I live in 48217 17 so that means that actually all of 48217 say bless you 18 and thank you for coming out.

19 Thank you, Mr. Moore. CHIEF GODBEE: 20 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Moore. Are there anymore communications. Anymore comments? 21 22 Hearing or seeing none -- Ms. Pannell, hearing or 23 seeing none we will close that section of our meeting. 24 Thank you. I want you to know that on September the 25 13th we will have a very important meeting and we will



announce the venue shortly, but we are bringing
 together a number of law enforcement agencies that
 covers various sections of the City of Detroit.

And our purpose for bringing these law enforcement agencies together is to better understand, the citizens to better understand our agency working agreements how that works. We also want you to get a chance to see firsthand the number of different gencies that responds to some of the crime and safety issues throughout the entire City of Detroit.

In addition to that we want you to know that if there may be some unpleasant experience with a law enforcement agency that you will know exactly where to go. You know where to go if it's DPD. We have this entity. And so if it's State Police, if it's Wayne State University Police, if it's Wayne County Sheriff's, we'll have representatives there.

Again, it's going to be on September 13th, it will be at 6:30 p.m., that is the normal date and time of our monthly community meeting and so please invite everyone to come. It's interesting because our meeting has already been advertised out in San Diego. So it's going to be a very important meeting.

24 We look forward to seeing you all there, and 25 please govern yourselves accordingly. Ms. Pannell?



8/30/	2012
-------	------

	rage Ju
1	MS. PANNELL: Sharon Pannell. I just wanted
2	to congratulate Commissioner White. Very good article
3	in Sunday's paper it was.
4	COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you.
5	MS. PANNELL: Yeah, he received the Dave Bing
6	Award.
7	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Amen. Congratulations,
8	sir. Having said that we will entertain a motion to
9	adjourn the meeting.
10	COMMISSIONER WHITE: So move.
11	COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.
12	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those in favor?
13	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
14	CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, ladies and
15	gentlemen. We'll see you next week, September the
16	13th.
17	(The hearing concluded at 4:15 p.m.)
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1	CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
2	
3	
4	STATE OF MICHIGAN)
5) SS
6	COUNTY OF WAYNE)
7	
8	I, Elizabeth Koller, hereby certify
9	that I reported stenographically the foregoing
10	proceedings and testimony under oath at the time and
11	place hereinbefore set forth; that thereafter the same
12	was reduced to computer transcription under my
13	supervision; and that this is a full, true, complete
14	and correct transcription of said proceedings.
15	aller
16	
17	Alizabeth Kollon
18	Elizabeth Koller, CSR 7042,
19	Notary Public,
20	Wayne County, Michigan
21	My Commission expires: June 1, 2018
22	
23	
24	
25	



Page 1

Α **able** 11:19 13:5 36:21 **absence** 25:5 **Academy** 22:7 **accept** 18:4,7 19:9 20:1,4,7 24:23,24 37:18 37:24 39:22 accepted 18:18 18:24 39:11 **Accident** 23:25 accompanied 18:15 **account** 44:14 accountability 10:7,15 **accurate** 43:19 43:20 accurately 37:4 accusation 30:25 acknowledge 35:22 **act** 27:9 36:14 **action** 20:23 37:6,18,24 38:3,19 **Activists** 40:16 **activity** 20:25 **actual** 34:11 add 35:11 **addition** 47:11 49:11 Additional 22:10 additionally 10:13 **address** 40:8 addressed 10:20 18:9 29:12 30:8 31:9 32:1 32:13 39:14 adjourn 50:9 administrative 22:21 admitted 32:18 **adopted** 37:16 adopting 37:13 adoption 15:14 18:20 36:5,8 38:15 **advance** 28:7

advertised 49:22 **advice** 42:24 **advise** 36:23 advisement 27:4 afternoon 3:4 31:5,6 40:14 40:15 45:3,10 **age** 48:14 agencies 49:2,5 49:9 **agency** 49:6,13 **agenda** 5:4 7:3,4 35:3 40:7 44:7 aggravating 40:23 **ago** 35:6 45:19 Agreement 17:12 agreements 49:7 **ahead** 7:2 **aim**17:16 **Alan** 3:19 Alexander 22:13 allegations 6:6 alleged 6:1 allegedly 32:21 33:24 **allow** 20:7 24:24 **allowed** 26:21 allowing 13:11 altercation 29:20 alternatives 19:22 Amen 4:24,25 50:7 Amendment 30:10 **amount** 13:10 18:14 19:16 38:7 **Ann** 39:13,14 announce 49:1 announced 29:22 announcement 29:1 announcements 40:2 **answer** 14:4 answers 47:4 **Anthony** 2:17 3:12,15 4:10 5:14 6:17,19 6:22 8:25 12:1

15:12 28:1 36:22 37:4 40:13 42:4 43:1,3 **Anybody** 38:20 **anymore** 16:14 25:20 30:2 48:21,21 **Anyway** 42:5 **apiece** 27:23 apologize 3:17 apparently 44:24 **appeal** 26:1,2 Appeals 26:9 **APPEARANCES** 2:1 Appearing 2:8 **applaud** 16:22 35:22 Applause 9:17 24:21 application 21:9 **applied** 20:24 appointed 22:5 23:5,12,16 appreciate 16:5 16:17 46:2 appreciation 24:1 apprehended 34:19 **approach** 20:17 approached 33:21 approaching 28:2 appropriate 20:17 27:12 29:16 47:3 appropriation 19:19 38:13 approval 7:13 8:9 16:12 20:1 20:8 38:18 **approve** 7:4,21 35:11 approved 7:3 approving 25:21 39:6 **April** 22:6 29:7 29:25 34:1 **Arbor** 39:13,14 archives 8:8 24:25 **area** 30:1,19

areas 6:6 31:9 **arrested** 31:23 34:2 arriving13:4 article 50:2 articulated 33:23 **asking** 15:19 45:23 **ass** 32:25 assaults 38:23 assigned 22:8,15 22:23 31:8 assignment 23:14 assignments 22:10,21,25 **assist** 11:21 13:21 assistance 20:18 Assistant 20:2 assisting10:2 associates 20:25 assumed 23:18 **Athletic** 22:11 attempted 33:22 Attendance 23:25 Attorney 2:3 3:18 15:4,10 15:18 16:5 25:25 26:4,5 27:14,16,20 28:4,9 37:4 40:11,13 **AUDIENCE** 4:25 Audit 23:8 **August** 1:20 3:2 5:16 7:5,13,22 8:4,5,10,11 9:13 18:8,15 22:14 36:4 available 33:3 **avenues** 40:22 **average** 9:9,10 averages 9:11 **Award** 19:18 23:24 50:6 **awarded** 19:14 Awards 23:25 24:1 **aware** 43:14 awareness 19:24 aye 7:10,19 8:2



			2
8:17 19:3	37:5	call 28:22 33:10	8:18 12:16
21:22 25:22	block 44:25		
		46:7,19 48:14	14:6 15:15,19
36:11 37:13,14	48:10	called 20:12	16:14,17 17:21
39:6,7,24	Board 1:2 2:3,4	26:12 30:2,3	18:22 19:4
50:13	2:8 3:5,7,12	38:25 41:17	20:6 21:18,23
B	3:15,18 6:24	calls 43:22,24	24:19,22 25:3
	14:10 15:7,13	car 41:3,7,8,20	25:23 27:13,18
back 9:22 14:2	17:17 24:9	41:21,23 42:1	27:21 28:8,10
15:20 17:23	26:6,18 27:3	42:1	28:14,17 31:2
27:21 29:2	28:11 30:6	care 42:10,10,18	31:4,6 33:16
31:17,17 32:3	31:1,5 33:16	43:10	34:23 36:7,12
backlog9:23	35:13,19 36:4	career 24:5 25:6	37:1,8,12,15
10:2	36:23 37:6,7	25:16	38:17 39:4,8
<pre>backlogged 38:23</pre>	40:2,8	caries 19:5	39:21,25 43:11
bad 42:20,22	body 36:2	carried 36:13	44:20 46:4
balance 14:21	Boston 20:14	carries 7:12,21	47:11,15 48:20
Bank 18:5,8,9,24	21:1	8:4,19 21:24	50:7,12,14
Banks 2:2 3:18	bothered 29:24	25:24 39:9	Chairperson 2:14
barge 29:17	bothering 29:24	carrot 20:16,17	19:6
barged 33:24	bow 4:15	cars 45:14	Chair's 26:20
barricades 45:22	BPC 26:10	case 9:8 11:23	challenges 16:24
based 20:13 21:4	briefly 17:23	14:1,1	chance 25:6 49:8
32:6,10,14	23:13 36:18	cases 5:23,24,25	change 19:20
44:10	43:12	6:5,15,16 9:2	changes 17:24
bases 26:25	brighter 4:23	9:4,4,5,7,10	Channel 44:10
basis 16:10	bring 21:12	9:11,14,14,15	charge 32:23
Beaubien 1:16	41:18 47:25	13:12	33:9 45:14
2:5 45:7	bringing 28:24	cash 19:16	charged 41:22
becoming 29:15	49:1,4	cause 32:11	42:2,2
behalf 2:8 24:10	broke 10:10	34:12,20	charges 31:10
26:6 35:20	brought 37:6	CCR 26:2,10	Charter 26:13,14
47:13	Brown 27:25 42:5	Cease 20:12,12	27:10
behavior 19:23	building 11:16	Celia 2:2 3:18	chasing 29:17,18
believe 9:16	built 45:19	15:11 26:6	check 18:14
42:23 43:8	Bureau 23:18,19	center 43:23	41:10 43:17
Bernice 40:16	38:12	certain 28:21	cheek 47:17
better 4:23	Bureau's 23:8	certainly 14:6,7	Chief 2:18 3:9
25:10 41:10	business 25:24	14:22,25 15:1	3:10,17,23 4:3
42:9 49:5,6	25:25 35:4	27:11 40:5	5:9,23 8:20,21
beyond 21:14	45:1,19	CERTIFICATE 51:1	8:24 11:7 14:6
BGP50P00167	businesses 24:2	certify 51:8	14:8 15:6
39:17	businessman	Chair 3:14 6:24	16:15,16,18,20
big 45:22	44:22	16:20 20:9,11	17:22 20:3,10
Billy 44:21	Butler 22:1,4,5	21:17 26:5	20:11 21:7,19
Bing 50:5	22:7,10,13,19	27:2 28:4 36:5	22:1,18,23
birthed 21:8	23:2,5,11,16	36:22	23:9,9,13,13
bit 26:8	23:21 24:3,13	Chairman 2:12	23:17,21 24:3
bless 4:17,23	24:18 25:5	3:4,7,11,25	24:13,18 25:5
48:17	48:6	4:8,11 5:1	30:4 36:18,20
blessing 4:20	buzzing 48:16	6:11,14,18,20	36:20 37:3
blessings 4:18		6:23 7:8,11,17	38:22 40:17,19
Bliss 36:17,23	C	7:20,25 8:3,14	41:10 42:9
	1	1	1



43:12,16 44:6 44:19,20 46:5 46:6,19 47:7,7 47:16,20,22 48:5,8,12,15 48:19 **Chiefs** 43:5 Chief's 14:10,20 16:6 23:24,24 children 29:8 **chose** 20:13 **church** 25:17 circumstances 17:2 34:12 **Citation** 23:24 **citizen** 5:16 27:15,17 28:20 33:17 **citizens** 14:12 16:4 23:22 24:2,4,10,15 26:2,9 35:20 49:6 City 4:22 17:4,6 19:19 24:4,10 26:13 35:9,21 38:19 46:5,8 46:16,16 47:3 47:25 49:3,10 City's 17:7 **civil** 23:8,18 30:2 **clarity** 6:14 classification 17:24 **clear** 12:8 27:13 **Clearly** 23:2 **close** 45:9,10 48:23 **closed** 5:24 9:4 9:5 27:7,8,12 45:8 46:22 **closing** 9:7,15 45:20,24 closings 46:6 **closure** 31:1 **closures** 46:12 **closure's** 47:5 clothing 29:23 **club** 48:10 **CMS** 11:11,15 **Coleman** 22:13

colleagues 13:2 14:24 15:16,17 15:21 16:15 24:24 27:23 collective 10:18 **College** 21:12 come 4:12,13 8:20 12:6 14:11,15 15:20 16:25 26:1 36:19 40:5,8 42:6,22 43:22 45:15 48:12 49:21 comes 5:2 42:21 44:7 coming 8:10 15:6 18:23 48:8,16 48:18 command 23:18 Commander 23:12 23:16 38:11 Commanding 23:7 23:14 Commencing 1:19 commendations 24:2 **comment** 36:25 comments 15:22 20:8 25:20 28:3 37:9 40:10 48:21 Commission 30:7 35:12 51:21 Commissioner 3:8 4:19 5:2 6:13 6:24 7:6,7,15 7:16,23,24 8:12,13 12:18 13:1,1 14:4,5 18:3,6,21 19:8 20:5,9 21:5,16 21:18 22:2,3 25:1,2 28:7 33:19 34:3,4 34:22 35:17 36:6 37:10,11 37:20,22,23 38:16 39:9,11 39:20 50:2,4 50:10,11 Commissioners

1:2 2:4,9,11 3:6,7 4:20 5:6 6:25 7:10,19 8:2,17 18:6 19:3 21:22 24:9 25:22 28:11 35:17,20 36:4,11 37:14 37:23 39:7,24 40:2,8,16 47:22 50:13 commitment 16:3 16:23 21:25 22:20 24:4 communications 6:3 40:7 48:21 communities 24:16 community 18:12 19:21,23 24:7 35:24 49:20 Community-Based 19:10,15 **compared** 5:18,21 comparison 9:2 complainant 26:11,16,22 27:16 32:7,21 32:23 33:23 complainants 31:20 complaint 26:2,3 26:10,15 33:2 44:12 complaints 5:16 5:17 6:2 26:14 31:15 complete 35:4 51:13 compliance 13:8 compliment 16:6 component 20:22 comprehensive 11:25 **computer** 51:12 concern 6:6 10:20 31:9 **concerned** 41:15 concerning 21:20 concerns 13:10 15:22 **concluded** 50:17

Page 3

concludes 6:9 conducted 11:24 11:25 conducting 11:22 12:14 confiscated 31:23 congratulate 15:1 24:17 36:3 43:4,9 48:5 50:2 Congratulations 50:7 conjunction 20:22 Consent 13:8 14:11,16 17:12 consider 15:7 consideration 15:13 consistent 9:12 10:3 17:11 constructed 46:8 construction 46:7 consultation 17:17 consummate 25:8 contents 41:8 **context** 43:21 continually 22:19 **continue** 10:15 43:7 48:3 continued 13:4 23:12 continuing 10:6 10:12 contribute 17:2 contributions 24:12 control 17:19 conversation 46:10 47:9 cooperating 45:13 copier 39:23 copier/printer 39:12,16 copies 28:6 copy 11:20 **correct** 15:5



Page 4

48:3

41:15 51:14 corrections 11:1 cost 18:17 19:24 38:6 39:18 Council 38:19 46:5 Councilman 47:25 48:3,6 **count** 5:17 **County** 37:19,25 38:4 49:16 51:6,20 **couple** 34:9 36:19 37:16 **course** 10:9 court 3:21 17:6 courts 42:16 **covered** 11:15 **covers** 38:6 49:3 **credit** 12:22 crime 17:3 22:15 49:9 **Criminal** 38:11 **crook's** 41:5 CSR 51:18 CSR-7042 1:21 **currently** 13:15 **cursed** 32:24 **cut** 12:8 cutting 29:5 D **dad** 47:20 Dalph 3:21 Daniel 4:4 Data 11:11, 14, 16 **date** 6:18 10:23 49:19 dated 5:15 7:13 18:15 Dave 50:5 David 21:12 Davis 3:16 4:2,2 8:22,23,24 9:18 12:17,21 13:18 day 5:20 6:19 10:24 11:5 15:20 18:12 33:22 40:25 days 9:15 10:23 10:23 11:3,4

27:5 34:25 36:24 37:5 **deadline** 10:22 11:5 **Dear** 4:16 **December** 12:9 22:22 decision 34:2434:25 35:1 46:10 decisions 19:23 **decrease** 5:19,22 **Decree** 13:8 14:11,16 dedication 24:14 **Dee** 34:16 **deems** 26:18 Delinquency 19:13 **deliver** 35:13 demeanor 6:7 31:10 32:23 33:4 demonstrated 24:3 department 4:22 14:18,22 16:19 16:23 18:10,11 18:17 19:12,14 20:7 22:5 23:4 24:6,11 25:10 30:14 35:21 38:1,18 39:15 39:18 40:21,23 41:15,24 42:6 45:2 47:13 **depend** 28:21 dependence 36:1 **Deputy** 22:1,4 23:17,21 24:3 24:12,18 25:4 36:20 37:3 47:7 48:5 described 33:21 deserving 23:23 **detainee** 36:16 determine 33:4 33:14 **Detroit** 1:2,18 2:4,6 3:1 18:9 19:9,14,15 22:5,6,11

23:22 24:5,5,9 24:10,11,16 26:13 28:20 30:1,14 35:9 35:21,21 37:18 37:24 38:1,3 38:19 39:15 44:7 47:25 48:9,10 49:3 49:10 **Detroit's** 47:23 **developed** 16:12 Development 23:7 dictating 46:22 **Diego** 49:22 different 13:13 34:9 40:22 49:8 **difficult** 16:24 digital 39:12,16 diligently 10:1 dire 42:14 directed 12:7 **directive** 36:13 36:14 37:9,13 directives 15:6 15:23 directive's 37:16 directly 13:9 Director 3:22 18:20 20:3 38:12 disappointed 40:20,24 44:17 discretionary 26:18 discussion 36:8 discussions 18:25 19:1 displayed 22:19 disseminate 11:8 District 6:3 33:10 39:13,17 **Division** 23:15 **document** 44:19 **dog** 46:20 **doing** 10:4,5 11:3 13:19 26:9 30:17 35:8 40:23 41:9 43:7 48:2

Donald 18:19 **donate** 18:11 39:16 **donated** 18:18 39:12 **donation** 18:4,7 18:18,23 39:19 39:22 Donnell 2:13 3:8 **door** 16:7 29:2 31:18,21 32:3 34:15,16,17 **DP** 31:18 **DPD** 18:11 49:14 Drake 3:16 4:2,2 8:22,23,24 9:18 12:17,21 13:18 dressed 28:24 drive 45:21 **driveway** 45:6,7 45:21 Driving 24:1 **drug** 20:25 30:20 30:22 drugs 30:25 dutifully 23:22 dvnamic 14:9 **D.C**37:3 Е **earlier** 13:24 easier14:2 eastside 35:9 echo 13:2 14:24 edicts 17:13 education 20:10 Edward 47:24 effectuated 47:5 efficient 13:22 **effort** 16:2 **efforts** 35:25 **either** 33:17 34:9

Elaine 31:7
election 42:21
eliminating 9:23
Elizabeth 1:21
 3:20 51:8,18
email 15:16
emailed 15:11



Page 5

embarrassing
41:4,12
emphasis 10:19
emphasizing
10:10
<pre>employment 17:8</pre>
encourage 11:8
energy13:7
enforce 46:20
enforcement
12:11 20:21
24:7 49:2,5,13
Engineering 46:9
enhance 4:22
Ennis 38:11
<pre>enter 34:9,13 entered 17:12</pre>
34:5
entertain 7:4,12
7:21 8:9 50:8 entire 24:5 28:6
49:10
entity 49:15
entry 31:9,10
32:10,12
eradicate 36:2
Eric 20:2
especially 45:11
46:1
essence 9:6
events 45:23
eventually 11:17
everybody 45:3
evidence 33:3
exact 33:22
exactly 34:2
49:13
exceed 38:8
excellence 22:20
exception 9:1
27:9
exchange $27:1$
excuse 29:5
Executive 23:7
exonerated 31:11
<pre>expecting 5:1</pre>
experience 49:12
expires 51:21
explanation 34:6
exploring 13:13
extenuating
34:12

extremely 16:24 F facilitate 46:9 47:9 **fact** 27:10 32:2 41:4 **facts** 32:20 **faith** 30:13 **fall** 27:8 **families** 36:1 47:23 family 18:12,13 46:2 fantastic 12:24 **far** 41:15 42:6 46:22 faster 9:7 **Father** 4:17 **fault** 42:15 **favor** 7:9,18 8:1 8:16 19:2 21:21 25:21 36:10 37:12 39:6,23 45:18 50:12 favorable 44:8 Federal 19:18 **fee** 41:22 42:2 **feel** 29:8 30:12 30:12 42:13 **felon** 29:18 **felt** 28:23 29:11 **fiancé** 31:20 32:8 34:15 Fifth/Third18:5 18:8,9,24 **fight** 46:20 **figure** 10:11 **file** 28:6 **filed** 5:24,25 6:2,5,15,16 Finally 12:9 **finance** 42:14 financially 47:1 **find** 21:13 **findings** 26:25 31:10 32:12,15 **Finest** 47:23 **Fire** 20:12,12 **first** 26:22 27:15,15,17

45:20 48:1 firsthand 49:8 **first-time** 44:22 fit 26:18 five 27:23,23 28:2,18 fix 10:10 **fleeing** 29:18 **floor** 29:3 32:25 33:25 focused 9:2412:7,13 **folk** 14:13 **follow** 17:13 20:13 44:11,13 **follows** 9:13 **followup** 11:23 39:2 **footage** 11:16,20 **force** 6:8 20:24 36:15 foregoing 51:9 **forget** 47:21 **formal** 15:12 16:21 **forms** 16:11 **forth** 10:21 13:24 27:22 41:9 51:11 forward 12:5 13:7 15:2,2,24 25:18 26:7 35:4 42:6 49:24 found 31:13 32:9 32:16,20 43:25 **four** 45:22 **Fourth** 30:10 free 23:25 45:17 **friend** 44:21 **front** 13:21 14:3 41:6 **full** 38:6 51:13 function 46:9 funding 20:1 21:4,11 38:2 funds 18:11,18 21:13 **funeral** 25:17 further 13:14,19 27:1 future 42:19

G **gained** 32:10 gains 17:3 gang 20:25 21:5 gangs 19:22 **garage** 45:20 gentleman 33:21 gentlemen 3:5 50:15 George 2:17 3:12 3:15 **getting** 13:23,23 **Gilbert** 31:19 32:7,17,19 give 5:10 15:8 24:19,22 26:8 29:4 30:23 34:6 42:24 43:7,18 45:17 given 43:21 **giving** 11:3 glad 40:17,17 go 7:2 8:7 9:16 16:13 29:9 30:24 31:16 32:3 33:1 46:16,16 49:14 49:14 goals 12:8 **God** 4:21 25:11 25:15 Godbee 2:18 3:9 3:10 16:16,20 20:11 21:7 36:20 38:22 40:19 43:12,16 44:6,19 46:6 46:19 47:7,16 47:20 48:19 **Godbee's** 30:4 goes 21:10 going 3:11 8:19 8:24 10:15 11:22 12:2,4,5 12:6,9 18:2 19:5 22:1 27:22,24,25 29:25 35:10 37:20 38:23 39:9 42:18,22 42:24 43:8



hats 14:7 45:23 47:5 48:7 49:18,23 heading 6:15good 3:4,9,10 4:12 5:8,9 6:25 13:5 15:1 25:19 31:5,6 40:14,15 43:9 45:3 48:3 50:2 **goods** 25:19 gotten 31:15 **govern** 49:25 governor's 30:3 Gracious 4:16 graduating 22:6 grandmother 29:10 grant 18:3 19:10 19:15,18 20:4 20:8 21:10,15 21:20 37:25 38:2,10,13,13 38:20 granted 20:1 40:1 grants 18:1 37:17 **Great** 6:20 greater 23:3 greatly 11:22 greeting 48:1

groceries 28:24

quess 30:20 34:8

guys 12:22 45:18

н

half 28:24 43:23

handled 26:23,23

hand 24:19,22

handles 47:13

41:19 42:18

41:11 42:8,16

happened 32:4

happens 26:16

hard 9:20,22 12:19 13:4

34:18,21

hands 31:22

Hanson 3:21

happen 30:8

42:18

groomed 23:2

guy 31:19

Headquarters 1:17 40:4 45:5 heads 4:15 health 25:19 hear 27:14,18 28:25,25 40:12 40:17,18 41:12 48:4 heard 40:25 **hearing** 7:8,17 7:25 8:15 17:6 19:1 21:20 26:1,12,17,19 26:22 27:2,3 27:11 30:24 36:9 39:5 48:22,22 50:17 Heavenly 4:17 held11:13 26:19 27:11 40:3 **hell** 43:9 Hello 28:19 help13:21 14:21 15:3 21:15 36:1 45:2 46:9 47:2 helpful 28:3 helping 10:1 hereinbefore 51:11 hey 42:17 Hi 45:3 high 19:25 **highest** 24:17 highjacked 41:2 41:3 **highly** 24:6 hinges 21:5 hold10:6 12:2,9 **holy** 4:23 home 29:7,8,9,17 29:20 30:24 31:14,17 32:2 32:11,14,16,22 33:25 34:5,9 34:13 Homeland 18:19 homeowner 34:11 **honest** 43:8 honor 24:11

Honorable 47:24 honoring 21:25 22:3 35:18 hope 13:6 hours 45:9,22 46:1 house 28:23 29:2 29:4 32:11 Human 35:7,18,22 36:3 Ι **ICO** 48:2 idea 13:25 identified 9:2 31:12,25 identifies 20:14 **II** 37:18,24 38:3 38:19 imagine 41:7 impeding 44:25 implementation 21:11,14 implementing 13:15 important 35:23 48:7,25 49:23 **imposed** 17:11 impounded 41:21 improper 44:12 improving 24:15 **incident** 30:18 32:1,21 33:5 33:14,20 34:2 41:1 incidents 44:9 **include** 11:16 included 22:11 22:25 including 31:11 **income** 18:14 inconsistencies 32:9 inconsistent 32:20 inconvenience 46:23,25 **increase** 19:24 independence 36:1 indicate 28:5 indicated 28:2

indicating 18:10 39:15 individuals 19:22 20:19,24 35:25 infested 30:23 influence 46:11 information 11:9 11:20 14:3 22:16 23:1 48:4 **initial** 10:22 21:14 **initially** 13:25 21:12 **initiate** 15:23 Initiative 21:8 **injury** 36:16 Inspection 23:1 Inspector 18:19 20:2 23:6,11 instance 14:2 33:23 instituted10:17 11:7,10 instituting 10:14 Integrity 23:8 23:18 **interest** 10:20 interesting 49:21 interrupted 23:14 interventions 20:16 interviewed 31:11 44:4 interviewing 12:10,11 interviews 12:14 13:23 introduce 3:12 3:24 investigate 41:8 investigation 26:24 31:8,13 33:2 41:25 42:7 investigations 5:23 38:11 investigative



Page 7

39:2 Investigator 3:17,24 4:3,5 4:5,6,7 5:9,23 8:20,21,24 9:11 14:7 15:7 26:23 investigators 5:6,7 9:25 13:3,11,16,21 38:7 **invite** 40:5 49:20 invocation 4:13 involve 6:1 involved 5:25 6:5 involvement 19:25 **issue** 44:23 **issues** 10:19 16:8 44:3 49:10 items 5:3,4 35:3 J **J**21:12 Janice 22:1, 4, 4 24:13,18 **January** 9:3,9,12 30:1 Jaquela 28:13 Jaquila 26:11 **Jerome** 2:12 3:6 **Jessica** 2:14 6:24 19:6 **Jesus** 4:24 job 12:24 15:1 20:17 25:5 43:5,6,9 44:10 48:3,3 John 21:12 **Johnson** 18:19 joined 6:25 **Jones** 20:2 July 5:17,18,18 5:22 6:2,5,17 9:3,10 23:6,20 39:13 June 51:21 **Justice** 19:12,12 19:13

justification 32:14 34:6,7 **Juvenile** 19:11 19:13 J-A-Q-U-E-L-A 28:16 Κ **keep** 12:7 13:17 14:25 20:19 28:1 30:17 40:11,13 43:13 **keeping** 12:13 **Kennedy** 21:13 Kenneth 4:6 **Kenyatta** 47:25 48:4,6 **key** 16:9 **killed** 45:19 kind 4:16 13:16 29:9,23 48:4 kits 39:3 **knock** 28:25 **knocked** 31:18 34:14,15 **know** 9:19 12:21 15:5,15,16 24:20 25:11 29:13,21 30:10 40:20 41:2,14 42:1,3,7,10,13 42:15,17 46:15 46:17 47:20 48:24 49:11,13 49:14 **known** 6:1 30:20 **knows** 38:21 45:16 Koller 1:21 3:20 51:8,18 **Kwame** 47:25 \mathbf{L} **ladies** 3:4 50:14 lady 30:19 41:1 42:3 43:5 44:5 **largely** 12:12 late 22:12 laudable 17:1 **law** 12:10 20:21 24:7 28:21 29:13,14,15

49:2,4,12 **lax** 41:9 **lay** 29:2 **Leach** 9:21 12:4 leadership 9:21 10:13 12:25 14:23 17:16 23:3 **leading** 6:2,6 League 22:12 Learn 11:11 **leeway** 11:4 **left** 30:4 **legal** 16:24 **letter** 18:9,16 24:1 39:14 47:12 Let's 24:19 level 16:3 20:24 **liaison** 47:24 Lieutenant 9:21 12:4 22:22 23:2,5 36:17 36:23 37:5 45:15 **life** 24:15 28:22 **lift** 25:13 **limit** 27:22 **listening** 40:22 42:25 literally 12:23 **little** 26:8 42:9 42:11 45:18 **live** 30:20 48:16 **living** 29:9 **load** 9:22 14:21 **local** 44:22 location 32:5 34:19 **long** 47:4 **longevity** 24:12 **look** 15:2 25:10 25:18 49:24 **looked** 13:14,19 looking 9:18 **lose** 30:13 **losing** 30:12 **lot** 14:2 44:9,23 46:24 **love** 48:10,10 **loved** 24:6 **low** 18:13

Lunch 11:11 М Macomb 45:6,21 macrotics 32:18 magnify 4:17 main 46:24 mainstreamed 14:17 maintain 13:6 14:21 16:3 maintaining 10:11 16:8 major 32:8 majority 18:13 21:10 **making** 17:3 19:23 **man** 48:9,13,14 management 11:23 23:19 **manager** 46:14 managing 46:13 Mandate 13:8 **mandated** 17:13 March 38:10 marketing 20:10 Marquitta 4:5 Mary 45:16 Mason 26:3,6,11 28:6,10,13,13 28:16,16,19 31:3 32:24 33:17 Mason's 32:19 34:15 match 19:16 38:3 Matrix 35:7,18 35:22,25 36:3 **matter** 27:3 matters 10:20 Mayor 22:12 Mayor's 21:7 22:12 30:5 **ma'am** 4:8 7:1 28:17 31:2 40:14,19 **mean** 31:20 33:2 42:16 means 9:6,15 48:17 Medal 23:24



needed 29:11

Page 8

medical 45:15 **meet** 4:13 25:6 **meeting**1:3 3:6 4:14,19,21 5:2 8:6,10,10 10:15,18 28:11 35:13 40:3,6 48:23,25 49:20 49:21,23 50:9 meetings 8:7 10:7,16 11:6 27:9 **member** 2:13 22:18 memo 42:12 mention 27:6 **merit** 24:16 **merits** 9:16 message 30:4 **metal** 14:25 methodology 20:13,14 21:3 Metropolitan 22:7 23:15 45:4 Michigan 1:1,18 2:6 3:1 51:4 51:20 **middle** 40:9 Miles 4:4 26:7 30:6 31:4,5,7 31:7 33:18,20 34:1,8 **million** 43:24 mind 36:2 45:9 45:12 **minute** 5:10 27:23 **minutes** 7:3,13 7:22 8:4,6,9 27:23 28:2,18 40:10 42:4 43:1,2 **mission** 19:20 **mistakes** 30:15 model 20:14 moderate 18:14 **Mohammed** 45:3,446:4,6,13 47:6 47:8,10,11,14 moments 25:18 **monetary** 18:4,7

monies 42:19 month 9:10,13 **monthly** 5:17 8:21 9:11 49:20 Moore 47:22,24 48:19,20 motion 7:4,12,12 7:21,21 8:4,9 8:19 19:5 21:24 24:23 25:24 36:13 39:9 40:1 50:8 motivational 12:10,11 move 5:3,3 7:2,6 7:23 13:7 16:13,18 17:23 18:20 20:3 25:1,24 26:4 27:24 30:1 35:4 36:5 38:15 39:19 40:6 50:10 moved 7:15 8:12 8:14 20:6 25:3 36:7 38:17 39:21 44:2,6 moves 35:25 moving 15:2,24 40:1 Murphy 4:4 M-A-S-O-N 28:16 Ν Nacomico 4:6 **name** 3:6,25 4:18 4:23,24 28:12 45:4 47:23 narcotic 32:4 narcotics 22:8 31:15,22,23 32:2,16 33:22

34:18,20

nature 20:18

necessarily

17:19 26:17

need 5:4 10:19

14:3 31:20

42:14 45:18

47:4

34:17,17 36:14

needs 30:8 neighborhood 30:20,22,23 neighborhoods 48:15 neighboring 24:16 **never** 28:22,25 28:25 29:19,20 29:21 45:14 new 5:5,7 9:11 10:14 14:16 15:24 16:6 25:25 37:13 45:20 **news** 43:13,18 47:18 newspaper 41:4 **nice** 42:12 **night** 40:25 **nine** 23:25 **normal** 49:19 **norms** 19:21 Northeastern 6:3 33:10 Northwestern 39:12,17 **Notary** 51:19 **November** 12:2 23:11 number 9:2 13:10 18:14 19:18,20 26:3,10,10 36:15 38:13 39:17 43:20 44:15 49:2,8 numbers 5:20 9:19 24:1 44:16 0 oath 51:10 objections 7:9 7:18 8:1,15 objectives 12:8 **observed** 31:16 32:3 **obtain** 33:13 occasions 32:4 occur 30:18

occurred 32:22

33:8,15 **OCI** 8:21 9:20 14:19 17:23 **October** 11:22 38:10 offenders 20:15 office 5:11,22 14:10 15:6 19:11,12,13 20:2 22:18,23 30:3,5,5 37:19 38:1,5 39:13 39:14 48:1,1,6 **Officer** 22:7,10 22:13 23:7,14 28:23 29:15,17 32:24 41:18 officers 6:1 14:20 16:23,25 17:14 25:12 29:21 30:15,16 31:14,17,21 32:10,15 33:21 33:24 34:5,14 38:7 42:8,17 44:15 45:13,14 official 8:6 **OJJD** 19:14 okay 6:20 15:21 17:25 21:16 27:2,22 34:3 39:4 47:6 **Old** 25:24 35:3 once 28:1 32:17 41:23 ones 44:1 one's 30:17 **open** 5:23 9:5,14 27:9 45:11,25 opened 31:21 34:17 **Operations** 22:9 opinion 27:4 opportunities 11:10 13:13 opportunity 13:11 16:22 opposed 7:11,20 8:3,18 19:4 21:23 25:23 36:12 37:15 39:8,25



oral 40:7 order 14:16 17:7 outstanding 14:23 25:5,6 25:16 35:8 owns 42:1 Ρ pack 29:25 **PAGE** 1:14 **paid** 9:23 **Pamela** 3:16 4:2 8:22,23 Panasonic 39:16 **Pannell** 48:22 49:25 50:1,1,5 **paper** 50:3 parameters 26:21 parenthetically 17:9 **parking** 44:23 45:4,17 **parole** 20:20 Parskaven 4:6 part 24:25 26:4 38:7 40:7 particular 5:11 21:20 32:1 35:5 parties 35:1 **Patrol** 22:9 **pedal** 14:25 **Penson** 4:11,15 **people** 5:8 12:13 19:25 25:19 31:11,16 33:1 42:14 43:6 46:10 47:3 perceived 19:24 percent 5:19,21 5:25 6:3,4,4,7 6:7,8,8 9:6 44:15 percentage 44:1 **perfect** 23:25 30:17 performance 16:8 22:20 performing 35:23 **period** 9:5 15:20 19:17 38:9 permanent 24:25

35:12 permission 18:4 18:7 19:9 34:11 37:18 39:11 46:15,17 **permit** 46:8 **person** 29:5 42:1 personal 17:2 personnel 3:22 4:21 **persons** 18:13 perspective 43:18 **phone** 33:10,13 place 4:23 10:8 10:13 13:4,20 17:8 39:3 51:11 **placed** 33:24 36:25 **plan** 12:6 planning 12:3 22:25 23:8 please 3:25 4:1 4:14 28:12,15 35:16 37:21 39:10 49:20,25 pleased 48:4 pleasure 25:8 26:20 pleasures 35:15 **podium** 8:20 40:9 point 6:14 17:10 17:19,20 31:21 34:18 **police** 1:2,17 2:4,8,18 3:5,7 3:22 4:18,21 6:25 16:18 17:18 18:10 19:14 22:5,7 22:11,18,24 23:10,13 24:6 24:9,11 28:11 28:22 29:1,21 29:22 30:14 35:19,21 36:4 38:1 39:15 40:2,4,8,21,22 41:15,24 42:6 44:24 45:5,13 45:14,14 46:14

46:18,19 49:15 49:16 **policies** 14:17 16:1 **policy** 10:21 15:6,24 16:11 36:13,14 37:4 **Political** 40:16 portion 40:6 position 41:9 possession 32:17 32:18 possible 11:9 40:12 potential 13:12 17:23 **poverty** 36:2 **prayer** 4:16 Precinct 6:4 22:8,11 **Precincts** 42:12 precise 42:7 preface 26:8 pregnant 29:3 preliminary 15:11 16:10 present 2:16 3:13,16 8:5 26:22 presentation 15:13 16:13 26:24 48:13 presented 28:6 president 48:11 **pretty** 9:12 **prevail** 17:6 Prevailing 16:25 Prevention 19:10 19:11,13,15 21:8 22:15 **prior** 10:13 **probable** 32:11 34:12,20 **probably** 35:6 41:2 probation 20:20 problem 45:10 procedure 6:7 procedures 10:12 10:21 14:17 proceedings 3:20 51:10,14

process 15:2 38:24 profanities 33:5 professional 25:9 professionalism 24:12 Professor 21:12 program 19:20 programs 18:12 19:12 progress 5:11 **project** 18:20 19:17 20:3,12 37:19,25 38:4 38:12,25,25 promised 16:3 **promoted** 22:14 22:22 **proof** 33:6,14 **proper** 43:21 properly 8:14 18:22 20:6 25:3 36:7 38:17 39:21 **property** 41:17 prosecutors 20:22 Prosecutor's 37:19,25 38:4 **prove** 33:7 **proven** 21:1 provide 17:18,20 19:21 provided 8:25 **provides** 13:16 26:14 **public** 14:9 22:16 23:1 27:5 41:5,12 51:19 published 36:24 37:5 **purchase** 33:22 **purpose** 9:1 49:4 pursuant 26:12 **put** 10:8,12 45:22 47:19 **putting** 13:20 14:20 p.m1:19 3:3 40:4 49:19



run 19:17

50:17 P54338 2:2
Q
quality 24:15 question 13:9 14:4 questioning 14:13 questions 6:11
12:17,19 15:21 15:22 16:7,15 16:15 17:22 18:25,25 20:8 21:19 33:17 37:8 38:20 39:5,23 quick 37:2
quick 37:2 quickly 15:10 Quinn 3:19 quorum 5:1 8:5
R
Ralph 2:18 3:9 rank 22:14,22 23:6,12,17 ratio 9:6 read 18:3,22 19:6 22:2 35:6 35:14,15 37:21 39:10
<pre>reading 6:9 real 37:2 realistic 44:9 realized 10:24 really 43:15 44:2 46:1 reason 11:17 29:4</pre>
recap 8:24 receive 38:2 received 5:17 9:9 15:15 18:24 32:6 50:5 receiving 9:7 recidivist 20:19
recipient 23:23 recognize 24:11 record 3:15 4:1 6:23 8:23 17:15 26:8

28:5,11,15 31:8,12 33:20 35:7,14 36:23 36:25 47:16 recording 3:20 **records** 33:13 35:12 redirecting 12:13 **reduced** 10:22 51:12 reducing 9:22 11:2 17:3 reduction 21:2 **reference** 38:22 reflect 9:19 **regard**16:8 regarding 6:11 19:21 26:2 36:8,15 **regards** 24:17 31:15 33:9 42:19 regrettable 17:15 regular 1:3 2:13 11:10 **related** 21:6 **relates** 5:10 8:8 14:10 **relative** 17:6 21:2 44:11 46:7 47:4 **remain** 24:25 remains 13:7 rendered 27:4 34:24,25 **Repair** 39:13,14 **report** 5:10,13 5:15,15 6:10 6:12,21 8:21 12:15 16:19,21 41:17 43:8 44:1 **reported** 43:19 43:20 51:9 **REPORTER** 51:1 **Reporting** 3:21 reporting/inv... 36:16 reports 11:1 44:16

represent 43:19 representatives 49:17 represents 5:19 5:21 **request** 18:3,7 19:7,8,9 37:24 39:6 45:25 required 38:3 **requires** 27:10 **Research** 37:18 37:24 38:4,20 resolution 21:24 22:3 24:24 25:21 26:13 35:7,11,15,18 36:9 resolutions 18:1 **resolved** 24:8 26:15 35:19 respected 24:6**respond** 43:22 responding 43:24 responds 49:9 responsibility 23:3 restraining 17:7 **result** 21:3 results 21:2 **retire** 25:15,19 **retired** 21:25 retirement 22:4 23:20 **Reverend** 4:11,15 **review** 10:25 11:7 15:20 **right** 3:17 16:2 25:13,14 30:10 30:23 35:15 40:1,9,13 44:2 44:24 **rights** 23:8,18 30:3 **rise**17:1 **risk**19:24,25 **risky** 19:23 **Robert** 38:11 **role** 23:3 **room**1:16 2:5 5:8 40:9 round 11:13 rude 33:11

S **safe** 29:8 **safety** 46:21 49:9 Sak 37:18,24 38:3,19,21 **sake** 17:14 **San** 49:22 **sanity** 43:13 satisfaction 26:15 **save** 11:21 46:2 **saw** 34:21 saying 16:5 47:17 **says** 6:15,16 44:3 scenario 17:9 **school** 29:14 **scope** 39:1 **search** 29:2 31:9 32:13,15 34:10 **searched** 32:14 32:22 33:25 **seat** 41:6 **second** 7:7 19:6 19:8 29:14 50:11 Secretary 2:17 3:12,14,15 4:10 5:14 6:17 6:19,22 15:12 28:1 36:22 42:4 43:1,3 Secretary's 5:13 5:15,15 6:10 6:12 **section** 22:9,15 22:16 23:1,1 26:13 45:15 48:23 sections 49:3 **Security** 18:19 22:12 **see** 4:12 5:9 14:8 16:11 27:25 36:16 40:17 41:10 47:2 49:8 50:15



seed 21:11 **seeing** 7:8,17,25 8:15 14:15 19:1 21:20 36:9 39:5 48:22,23 49:24 **seek** 38:18 **seen** 29:5 **sees** 14:9 **selected** 38:2 self-sufficient 11:18 sell 32:2 **send**15:17 47:12 **sent** 34:19 42:12 sentiments 13:2 September 23:17 40:3 48:24 49:18 50:15 Sergeant 3:19 4:3,4 22:14,19 26:7,23 27:14 27:19 30:6 31:4,5,7 33:11 33:18,19 34:1 34:8 **serial** 39:17 **serious** 14:13,15 16:7seriousness 14:11 **serve** 18:13,20 20:3 38:12 **served** 22:17 23:22 **service** 3:21 6:7 17:18,20 21:25 23:19 43:24 45:21 **services** 18:12 20:17 24:23 35:7,18,22 36:3 Serving 3:7 session 12:3 27:7,8,12 **set** 27:22 51:11 **sexual** 38:23 **shape** 42:22 **Sharif** 45:4 **Sharon** 50:1 **Sheriff's** 49:17

shortly 49:1 **side** 27:24 **sides** 26:21 27:3 **signed** 36:3 significantly 17:3 **sir** 3:9,10 4:12 5:7,14 6:10,21 16:16 17:21,22 20:11 27:20 37:16 39:4 47:15 50:8 **sit** 12:5 15:4 42:25 **sitting** 14:12 situation 17:16 43:14 **six** 9:11 **Sixth** 6:4 **slant** 44:9 **Sloan** 4:7 **Smith** 40:15,16 40:20 42:5 43:2,4,12,15 44:4,18 47:17 47:19 **software** 13:13 **sold** 30:25 31:16 **somebody** 43:17 47:8 **someone's** 29:17 30:24 **Somewhat** 20:16 **soon** 11:9 13:25 **sooner** 30:1 **sorry** 5:6 37:21 40:13 **sound** 42:9 Southwest 48:9 48:10 **space** 13:16 **speak** 36:19,21 speaking 24:9 35:20 **speaks** 13:9 **Special** 22:9 specific 20:15 44:11 47:13 specifically 9:20 11:11 **speech** 42:11 **spell** 28:14

spirit 24:14 36:2 **spoke** 31:24 **SS** 51:5 **staff** 3:13,24 9:20 10:18 11:11 12:24 22:17 23:9,13 43:5,6 46:24 46:25 47:2,8 48:2 standpoint 44:2 46:11,21 **stands** 38:21 **start** 14:1 **startled** 29:23 **state**1:1 3:25 28:12 49:15,16 51:4 stated 31:14,18 32:13,24 33:11 37:4 **statement** 32:17 statements 32:6 32:8,9,19,20 States 19:11 **stating** 32:25 **Station** 44:24 statistically 9:1 statistics 9:13 11:8 **stay** 13:5,7 **stayed** 29:7 **staying** 29:10 **stays** 10:3 stenographically 51:9 **stepped** 31:21 **stick** 20:16,21 strategic 12:2,6 **strategy** 12:5 **street** 30:19 44:25 45:5,6,7 45:8,10,11,21 45:21,24,25 46:6,11 streets 46:22 strength 25:20 **strong** 20:21 submission 10:23 20:13 21:4,9

Page 11

submitted 9:14 **Success** 23:7 successful 21:1 21:9 Sunday's 50:3 supervision 51:13 supervisors 9:25 10:17,19 11:6 11:8 12:3 supervisory 22:21 supplies 38:8 **support** 7:16,24 8:13 14:20 15:3 18:11,21 20:5 25:2 32:21 36:6,8 38:16 39:19,20 47:12 supported 8:15 18:23 20:7 25:4 38:18 39:22 **supporter** 40:21 **supposed** 41:8,24 41:25 42:21 **sure** 4:2 10:2 17:17 20:22 47:8 **sustain** 21:14,15 sustainability 10:11 16:9 sustained 21:2 33:1,6,12 swift 20:23 **sworn** 38:7 synergy 14:9 System 11:15 **Systems** 11:12 т tails 12:23 take 12:21 14:7 27:3 43:9 Taken 1:16 talk 12:5 25:11 **talked**13:12 30:5,5,6

talking 33:11
tangibly 14:15
targeted 20:15



Page 12

20:23 **Taylor** 2:14 6:24 7:7,15,23 8:13 12:18 18:21 19:6,8 22:2,3 25:1 34:4,22 36:6 37:11,20 38:16 39:9,11 50:11 team 10:16 17:17 23:9 teams 10:7,17 13:23 teamwork 9:24 **tear** 29:2 **Tech** 11:14 technique 12:12 **tell** 41:5 temporary 17:7 tenacious 24:14 terms 13:10 17:8 17:11 34:8 **tested**16:2 38:24 testimony 51:10 testing 39:2 **thank** 3:14 4:8 4:12,17 5:5,7 6:20,22 9:19 12:15,16,19,22 13:1,3 14:22 15:3 16:14,20 17:21,22,25 21:16,18,19 24:17 25:11,15 26:5 28:4,8,9 28:17 31:2,3 34:22,23,23 35:1 36:3 37:1 37:16 39:4 42:25 43:10,11 44:20 46:2,4 47:10,14,15 48:2,7,8,15,18 48:19,20,24 50:4,14 therapeutic 12:12 thing10:4 25:13 25:14,15 27:8 **things** 10:5,14 13:20,23 20:18

25:9 28:21 29:16 44:15 **think** 3:16 8:6 14:8,14 17:1,5 25:12 41:10,23 42:11 Thompson 4:5 thoroughfare 46:23,24 three 21:4,15 23:24 35:6 45:19,22 Thursday 1:20 7:13,22 10:6 10:14 40:3 **tied** 21:7 time 7:2,3 8:19 8:21 10:25 11:2,4,21 13:10,18 16:18 18:2 19:5 21:24 22:17 24:23 26:21 27:22 28:1 29:3 30:17 35:5 38:6,7,9 40:11,13 41:20 47:19 48:12 49:19 51:10 timeframes 13:22 times 16:24 36:19 44:15 **tired** 29:9 **today** 3:8 7:4 14:8,9 16:21 17:6 28:7 40:18 42:8,16 42:18 today's 4:14 5:2 26:12 **Tolbert** 36:20 37:3,3 47:7 told 31:25 41:18 41:20 46:14 **tomorrow** 41:18 tongue 47:17 **tool** 10:7 total 9:2,4,14 38:9 **touch** 47:3 tow 41:7 towed 41:3,23

traffic 46:21 training 11:10 11:12,13,23,24 11:24,25 12:10 20:18 trainings 11:15 transactions 8:7 32:4 transcription 51:12,14 true 43:19 51:13 trust 30:13,13 trying 30:13 **Tuesday** 11:14 **TV** 41:1, 4, 13 two 23:23,25 29:19 30:14,21 31:10,16 34:17 38:6 40:10 42:4 43:1,2 **type** 20:18 26:18 27:8,11 46:9 **types** 44:3 U understand 16:1 26:16 30:25 39:1 49:5,6 understanding 8:8 15:25 unfinished 35:3 unfortunate 17:10 Unfortunately 45:8 **uniform** 29:22 **Unit** 22:12 23:24 **United** 19:11 **units** 6:1 **University** 49:16 **unknown** 6 : 1 unnecessary 41:19 unpleasant 49:12 unwavering 24:4 **upcoming** 11:15 update 10:18 37:2 uphold 29:15 upload 11:19,20 **upset** 42:8 upsetting 41:16

use13:22 33:5 36:15 utilized 4:22 v **valuable** 35:23 various 49:3 **venue** 49:1 **Vice** 2:14 6:24 19:5 video 11:20 33:3 **violated** 28:23 30:11,12 violating 20:19 **violence** 19:10 19:15,21,22,25 21:3,8 **visitor** 44:23 voluntarily 17:12 **vote** 5:4 18:2 35:10 voting 5:3 W waiting 10:24 37:6 walk 29:1 **wallet** 41:5 want 5:5 10:9,10 11:17,19 14:7 15:8,9 16:1,22 17:8,22,24 18:2 24:22 25:25 26:3 29:8 31:12,25 35:4 37:17 42:22 43:7 44:17 48:2,5,8 48:14,24 49:7 49:11 wanted 15:7 25:4 50:1 wanting 25:9 Warfield 2:12 3:4,6,11,25 4:8,11 5:1 6:11,14,18,20 6:23 7:8,11,17 7:20,25 8:3,14 8:18 12:16 14:6 15:15,19



	1	l .	1
16:14,17 17:21	48:14 49:17	world12:13	117 5:18,25 6:5
18:22 19:4	50:15	worse 20:15	6:16
20:6 21:18,23	we're9:6,7 10:5	write 13:11	12 5:21 6:4
24:19,22 25:3	10:10,12,14,15	writing 13:17	12-259 26:10
25:23 27:13,18	11:3,22 12:2,4	written 34:25	13 18:8
27:21 28:8,10	12:6,9,14 13:5	wrong 25:12,14	13th 48:25 49:18
28:14,17 31:2	13:15,19,20	43:25	50:16
31:4,6 33:16	17:15,19 26:9		1300 1:16 2:5
34:23 36:7,12	27:13 37:6	Y	132 5:19
37:1,8,12,15	38:23 42:22	yard 29:6	13565 38:14
38:17 39:4,8	43:24 48:7	Yeah 50:5	13568 19:20
39:21,25 43:11	we've10:22 11:6	year 5:20 6:18	14 6:3 23:20
44:20 46:4	11:9,13 16:9	6:19 9:8 10:8	16 6:8 9:14
47:11,15 48:20	white 2:13 3:8	11:25 29:14	16th 8:4,10
50:7,12,14	6:13 7:6,16,24	43:23	18th 23:6
warm 48:1	8:12 13:1 14:5	years 21:4,15	193 6:6
warrant 34:10	18:3,6 20:5,9	23:23 28:20,21	1987 22:6
Washington 2:2	21:5,16,19	29:19 30:21	1995 22:15
3:18 9:21 10:5	25:2 29:5 33:1	45:19	1999 22:23
12:4 15:5,10	33:19 34:3	young 19 : 25	
15:11,18 16:5	35:17 37:10,22	22:13 43:5	2
26:1,4,5,6	37:23 39:20	48:13,14	2 44:10
27:14,16,20	50:2,4,10	youth 21:3,7	2nd 7:13
28:4,9 30:7	who've 15:1		2002 23:6
40:11	Wilde 44:21,21	Z	2004 23:11
watch 43:13,17	wins 17:9	zero 9:15 10:11	201.11 36:15
47:17,18	wish 35:14 40:7	13:4,5	2010 23:17
Watson 3:22	43:25	\$	2011 5:18,21 6:5
way 26:7 29:16 30:11 32:10	withstanding 27:10		38:10 2012 1:20 3:2
33:6 37:17	witness 31:12,19	\$1,500,000.00 19:16	5:16,17,18,20
42:21,21	31:24 32:1	\$100.00 18:15,23	5:22 6:2,19
Wayne 37:19,25	witnesses 13:24	\$101,970.00 38:8	7:5,14,22 8:11
38:4 49:15,16	woman 25:7	\$111,917.00 38:9	9:3,3 18:8,15
51:6,20	wonder 27:6	\$111,917.00.00	23:20 34:2
ways 34:10	wonderful 4:16	38:2	36:4 39:14
week 17:25 50:15	12:24,25 25:7	\$9,920.00 38:8	40:3
weekends 45:11	43:6 48:3		2012-PB-FX2-K002
45:12 46:1	wondering 45:1	0	19:19
weekly10:6,16	word 4:16	00042563 18:14	2013 12:6 38:10
11:6	words 14:24		2018 51:21
weeks 35:6	work 9:20,22	1	22nd 22:22
welcome 3:5	12:8,20 13:4	1 1:14 51:21	223 9:14
28:10	17:1 25:7,7	1st 9:3,9 22:8	23rd 8:5,11
went 31:17 46:13	35:8,23 37:17	38:10	23:17
weren't 29:22	39:1	1,2265:24 9:5	24 6:7
we'll 7:2 8:8	worked 9:25	10 6:4,8 11:4	25 23 : 23
15:20 16:12,18	12:22	10-01-2012 19:17	265 5:23
17:25 27:14,18	working 10:1,9	100 44:15	28th 11:14
27:24 34:25	14:1 15:12	11 5:19	3
39:1 43:4,17	45:9,12 49:6	11th 22:11	
44:13 47:12	works 49:7	110 9:10	3rd 22:14
	-	-	-



3:00 40:4 3:14 1:19 3:3 30 3:2 7:5 15:20 27:5 34:25 36:24 37:5 30th 1:20 5:16 39:13 31st 9:3,10 313 2:7 32 28:20,21 328 2:5 328A 1:16 33 5:25 6:7	<pre>9-30-2015 19:18 90 9:15 10:23 11:5 90th 10:24 911 11:11,16 43:23 975,000 43:22</pre>
4	
4 44:10 4:00 45:10 4:15 50:17 400 38:25 43-year-old 48:9 48217 48:8,16,17 48226 1:18 2:6 48997 26:3,10	
5	
51 1:14 55 9:6 596–1835 2:7	
6	
6th 22:6 40:3 6:30 49:19	
7	
718:15 44:10 7-80926:13 704251:18 7915:20,246:15 6:18,199:4	
8	
<pre>80 10:23 11:3 8045 39:16 83-year-old 30:19 894 5:21</pre>	
9	
9 36:4 9th 7:22 29:7 34:1	

